
Meeting papers

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee

Friday 8 July 2016 at 2.00 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester





Date Published:30 June 2016     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Friday 8 July 2016 at 2.00 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Laura Gibbard

2  ELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON 

To elect a Chairperson for the Civic Year (2016/17).

Laura Gibbard

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests by members.

Laura Gibbard

4  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2016.

Laura Gibbard

5  GFIRST LEP UPDATE (Pages 7 - 20)

To receive an update report on GFirst LEP Growth Deal Activity.

Pete Carr

6  GLOUCESTERSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT PLAN (GIIP) 
(Pages 21 - 42)

To receive an update report on progress with the development of 
the Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Plan.

Nigel Riglar

7  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH 'SHOWCASE' & 'FUTURE 
AMBITIONS' WORK (Pages 43 - 60)

Nigel Riglar



    

To note the completion of the Gloucestershire Showcase produced 
for the County Council and to consider undertaking a further piece 
of work to help consideration of future economic ambitions.

8  FUTURE MEETING DATES 

To note that the Committee is due to meet on the following dates in 
2016 and 2017:

Wednesday 7 September 2016
Wednesday 30 November 2016
Wednesday 15 March 2017
Wednesday 21 June 2017
Wednesday 6 September 2017
Wednesday 29 November 2017

All meetings to start at 10am (this allows meetings of the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee to take place 
on the same day).

Laura Gibbard

Membership –  Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cllr Robert Vines, Cllr Paul James, 
Cllr Steve Jordan, Cllr Christopher Hancock and Cllr Steve Lydon 
Pete Carr and Claire Mould

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Gibbard, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.gibbard@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Members are required to sign the attendance list.

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.gibbard@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Wednesday 16 March 2016 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - 
Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Mark Hawthorne
Cllr Paul James
Cllr Patrick Molyneux
Cllr Robert Vines

Cllr Geoff Wheeler
Cllr Christopher Hancock
Pete Carr
Rob Loveday

Substitutes: Cllr Rowena Hay

Apologies: Cllr Steve Jordan

34. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

35. MINUTES 

Resolved

That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2015 be approved as a 
correct record.

36. GFIRST LEP GROWTH DEAL ACTIVITY 

Pete Carr, Deputy Chief Executive of GFirst LEP, provided the Committee with an 
update on GFirst LEP Growth Deal activity. 

Members were informed that projects moving through the approval and funding 
process were on track and that LEP Board sub-committees were meeting to 
progress projects including the Growth Hub. Attention was drawn to the project 
reporting spreadsheet which provided an overview of the phases of development 
with each project.

Pete Carr explained that projects were now inputting onto an online system and that 
work was being carried out with project promoters and LEP leads on the better 
recording and monitoring of outcomes and outputs. The final two evaluations within 
the Growth Deal for the Berkeley Green project and Cyber Security Training and 
Conference Centre had been discussed with project promoters and would be 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

scoped in detail and commissioned in the next 2 months. An update would be 
provided at a future meeting of the Committee. 

In response to a query on the Growth Hub project, the Committee was informed 
that the rotation of locations was being considered and that further details on the 
criteria and location of Growth Hub spaces would be provided.

One member suggested that it would be useful for detailed information on projects 
within district areas to be available on the GFirst LEP website. 

The Committee was informed that there would soon be an announcement by the 
Government on the next round of Growth Deals and that it could be a more 
competitive process than the last round.

The Committee considered whether it would be possible to refresh the data sets 
behind the Strategic Economic Plan between the Growth Deal rounds. It was 
suggested that a partial refresh could be completed as projects were developed 
over the summer for prioritisation. 

The Committee noted the update report and recognised the positive relationship 
that was being developed between the local authorities and the GFirst LEP.

37. SKILLS POLICY FOR GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

Peter Holmes, Head of Extended Learning, Gloucestershire County Council, 
presented a draft skills policy for Gloucestershire to the Committee. He informed 
members that the Skills Funding Agency was looking to devolve funding for Adult 
Skills and therefore it was important that the principles to engage in a skills strategy 
for Gloucestershire were set out. 

The aim of the skills policy for Gloucestershire would be to address economic 
growth by increasing skill levels within the county. Particular emphasis would be 
placed on higher level technical and professional skills, and providing skills for 
those who needed to reengage with learning as a route to employment or re-
employment. It was estimated that funding would be between £10 and £15 million 
and that there would be competition amongst education providers for the funding. 

Members discussed how the policy could recognise the skill needs of employers 
and small businesses and how the skills gained by young people could be matched 
to the skills required by local businesses. Consideration was also given to the 
recognition of apprenticeships within the policy. 

Peter Holmes explained to the Committee that the district councils, GFirst LEP and 
further and higher education providers would need to be liaised with regarding the 
skills needed within the county, the reasons why a proportion of the working age 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

population were not engaged with the labour market, and the types of skills courses 
available. 

The Committee understood that funding for Adult Skills would be predicated on a 
Devolution deal, however funding could potentially be secured through other 
mechanisms, such as through the LEP.

The Committee recognised that the draft skills policy was a starting point and that a 
strategy would need to be developed to reflect how the skills policy would be 
achieved and measured. The Committee agreed that it would be useful to have a 
shared vision on a skills policy for Gloucestershire and requested that progress with 
the development of the policy be fed back at a future meeting.

38. GLOUCESTERSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT PLAN 

Mike Dawson, Chief Executive, Tewkesbury Borough Council, introduced the report 
on the progress with the development of the Gloucestershire Infrastructure 
Investment Plan (GIIP).

Lisa McCance, Shared Intelligence, explained that there had been a focus on 
interdependency between existing projects and risk management, which had been 
reflected in the GIIP. Progress on proposals would continue to be driven and 
funding would be explored. 

Members were informed that two new projects had been presented to the Senior 
Officer Group for inclusion in the GIIP. These were Cheltenham High Street, 
categorised as a developer-led infrastructure project, and West Cheltenham 
Employment Land, categorised as an infrastructure project that was a longer-term 
priority. There was currently a shortfall estimated to be £495k for the Cheltenham 
High Street project. 

In reference to the proposed Housing and Planning Bill, members were encouraged 
to make relevant comments directly to the Government consultation and the Local 
Government Association (LGA). 

One member suggested that long-term aspirations and challenges for the county, 
such as the A417 missing link and the Severn crossing, be considered and 
addressed in the GIIP. 

Having been informed that the presentation and effectiveness of the GIIP was being 
considered, members noted the report. 

Resolved

1. To confirm the new projects and categorisation of projects within 
the GIIP; and

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

2. To approve the work streams to take the GIIP forward into delivery.

39. LGA GLOUCESTERSHIRE CASE STUDY 

Nigel Riglar, Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure, 
Gloucestershire County Council, introduced David Marlow of ‘Third Life Economics’ 
to the Committee. David Marlow had been commissioned by the LGA to complete 
four ‘Local Growth Case Studies’, one of which included Gloucestershire. He had 
since been commissioned by Gloucestershire County Council to produce a 
‘Gloucestershire Growth Showcase’, which would be available by 11 April 2016, to 
highlight Gloucestershire’s successes and demonstrate how it could deliver 
economic growth.

David Marlow presented to the Committee the issues and opportunities for 
Gloucestershire, referencing 26 key issues that would need to be addressed in the 
local growth landscape from 2016. He also determined how the proposed growth 
showcase would be developed out of the initial LGA case study. This would include 
showcasing local examples of serious contributions to local growth debates, such 
as in transport and infrastructure developments. 

The Committee discussed the productivity challenge against other areas that were 
similar to Gloucestershire, recognising the challenge Gloucestershire faced against 
metropolitan areas, and considered Gloucestershire’s assets and capabilities. 
Reference was made to the consideration of Gloucestershire’s long-term 
aspirations. 

The Committee noted the report, recognising that it was useful to have a new 
perspective on Gloucestershire’s economic development and growth.

Resolved

1. That the contents of the LGA Economic Growth Case study be 
noted; and

2. That Gloucestershire County Council’s commissioning of additional 
work be supported. 

40. BUSINESS RATE POOL 

Sandra Cowley, Strategic Head (Finance and Business Services), Stroud District 
Council, provided members with a verbal update on the current position of the 
Business Rate Pool. It was explained that for 2015/16, following backdated 
appeals, the forecast net gain for the year would be £0.8million and that there 
would not be a contribution to the Strategic Economic Development Fund. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Members noted that the Pool was to be dissolved in its current form and reformed 
for 2016/17 to exclude Tewkesbury Borough Council following the impact of the 
successful backdated appeal by Virgin Media in 2014/15. The forecast for the new 
2016/17 Pool was that an estimated £2.5million would be retained in 
Gloucestershire.

The Committee noted the update and thanked Sandra and the Business Rate Pool 
Management team for their work.

41. FUTURE MEETING DATES 

The Committee noted the meeting dates for the remainder of 2016.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.00 pm

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5

GFirst LEP Update for GEGJC meeting July 2016

Gloucestershire Growth Deal

a) Current project funding

The current status of the projects that are going through the approval and funding process is as follows:

Stage of Process Project/s
Outline Business Cases 
Approved

All

Conditional funding letters 
issued

All

Due diligence commenced 14 projects: GREEN; STEM projects x 4; airport; Blackfriars; Cyber; 
Growth Hub expansion; Growth Hub Network; Berkeley Bridges; 
Cinderford spine road; RAU rural innovation centre; Gloucester 
Central Transport Hub

Due diligence completed 14 projects: GREEN; STEM projects x 4; airport; Blackfriars; Cyber; 
Growth Hub expansion; Growth Hub Network; Berkeley Bridges; 
Cinderford spine road; RAU rural innovation centre; Gloucester 
Central Transport Hub

GFirst LEP Board approval for 
funding agreement

13 projects: GREEN; STEM projects x 4; airport; Blackfriars; Cyber; 
Growth Hub Network; Berkeley Bridges; Cinderford spine road; RAU 
rural innovation centre; Gloucester Central Transport Hub

Funding Agreement in place 11 projects: GREEN; STEM projects x 4; airport; Blackfriars; Cyber; 
Berkeley Bridges; Cinderford spine road; Gloucester Central 
Transport Hub

b) Project reporting
The latest version of the project reporting spreadsheet is provided to the Committee with this update 
and this shows timelines for the projects and funding. It also shows any variance from what has been 
planned and agreed with BIS in our spend profile.

All projects are reporting on a monthly basis and submissions are input monthly by the LEP staff to the 
LOGASNet system. From July, BIS will be implementing a slightly different monitoring and reporting 
arrangement based on ‘place based’ reporting.

c) Assurance Framework update and refresh
Members of the Programme Management Group (LEP staff and Gloucestershire County Council officers) 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 5

have used lessons learned during the first year of implementing the SEP and Growth Deal to update the 
Assurance Framework. This annual review and updating of the Assurance Framework is something 
expected by BIS and is good practice to ensure the Assurance Framework remains fit for purpose.

The Programme Management Group has now completed its update of the Assurance Framework and 
the LEP Board approved the changes at the June Board meeting. The current version can be found at 
http://www.gfirstlep.com/Home/Assurance-Framework/?Result=1 and the revised and updated version 
will be published in its place as soon as the annexes to the main document are ready for publication.

The main changes/updates made to the Assurance Framework are as follows:

i) The transfer of Gloucestershire Local Transport Board (GLTB) decision-making 
arrangements to the GFirst LEP Board

ii) Refining and explaining the role of the Programme Management Group

iii) The introduction of the Investment Panel to review project business cases and due 
diligence reports, etc. in order to make recommendations to the LEP Board for final 
investment funding decisions

iv) Clarification of arrangements for when Gloucestershire County Council is both 
accountable body and project promoter

v) Changes to the LEP business groups and project management boards

vi) Explanation of the Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Pipeline to bring forward 
and prioritise infrastructure projects supported by the local authorities so that they can 
enter the Single Local Growth Fund project pipeline

vii) Updating of processes for selection of Single Local Growth Fund projects

d) Audit and project sampling
GCC are currently undertaking an audit of the LEP and Accountable Body processes for Growth Deal 
and findings will be used by the Programme Management Group (PMG) to inform its continuous 
improvement of the management processes for Growth Deal.

In parallel with this audit, BIS is undertaking project sampling work on three categories of Growth 
Deal projects for all LEPs. These are: 

 One transport project above £5m (Gloucester Central Transport Hub)

Page 8

http://www.gfirstlep.com/Home/Assurance-Framework/?Result=1


Page 3 of 5

 One transport project below £5m (Berkeley Bridges)

 One other project within the key LGF themes (housing, skills) (GREEN)

Feedback from the BIS project sampling will be put together with its review of LEPs’ assurance 
frameworks and any recommendations/findings will be considered and followed up by the PMG.

e) Growth Deal Round 3 

The LEP is preparing its Growth Deal Round 3 submission for the 28th July deadline. This will include 
details of all the proposed projects, projected leverage, outputs and outcomes as well as explanations of 
the ‘fit’ with Government priorities, how we are managing our current Growth Deal, etc. Prior to that we 
have submitted a ‘snapshot’ to Government that explains the prioritized list of projects and the overall 
ambitions for the programme of projects, projected outputs/outcomes, leverage, etc. 

Diane Savory and David Owen will be attending a challenge session in July to present and discuss our 
proposals for Gloucestershire with Ministers.

11 projects will be submitted, and these fit closely with our Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and original 
Growth Deal, contribute to a number of Government priorities and address local needs. The projects 
cover: the cyber security of the UK; skills development; opening up of strategic housing and employment 
land; housing growth; increased productivity; regeneration.

The total ask of the Single Local growth Fund (SLGF) will be just under £79M.

As discussed previously with GEGJC members, several infrastructure projects that were included on the 
Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Plan (GIIP) list managed by the Senior Officer Group and 
which were considered appropriate to be considered for Single Local Growth Fund have been 
incorporated in the submission for the next Growth Deal Round 3.

The prioritized list of projects was arrived at following an extensive process that included:

 The submission of Expressions of Interest (EoI) forms by project promoters
 The scoring of these EoIs by a sub-group of the LEP Board and members of the Programme 

Management Group
 The submission of business cases by project promoters
 The scoring of these business cases by a sub-group of the LEP Board and members of the 

Programme Management Group
 Presentations and Q&A sessions with the LEP Board for all project promoters invited to progress 

to this stage

The resulting prioritized list of projects is as follows:

Page 9



Page 4 of 5

Number and Title of 
proposal

Organisation
Total £m 
(incl. 10% 

contingency)

Cumulative 
order: All 

Cumulative 
order: excl. 
Cyber 
Business 
Park

Cyber 
Business 
Park

27. A40 Longford Traffic 
Mitigations to support 
the JCS Strategic 
Allocations

Tewkesbury 
Borough Council

4.688 4.688 4.688  

37a Cheltenham Cyber 
Business Park - 
infrastucture & Site Prep

Cheltenham 
Borough Council

22.000 26.688  22.000

22c Cinderford Campus 
Build Gloucestershire 
College  (renamed from: 
Gloscol Forest of Dean 
Campus)

Gloucestershire 
College

2.860 29.548 7.548  

29. RAU - Cirencester 
Enterprise Quarter (CEQ)

RAU 14.485 44.033 22.033  

3b Gloucester Railway 
Station, A Gateway to 
Economic Growth

GCC 10.450 54.483 32.483  

11 Cinderford Northern 
Quarter Site Preparation 
Works

FoD District 
Council

2.134 56.617 34.617  

30. Dualling the A419 
between J13 of the M5 
and Chipmans 
Roundabout

Ecotricity 7.700 64.317 42.317  

38.  Hangar 
Development, 
Gloucestershire Airport

Gloucestershire 
Airport

7.810 72.127 50.127  

21b Littlecombe
Stroud District 

Council
3.850 75.977 53.977  

16. Centre of Excellence 
for Food and Drink 
industry & general 
growth in engineering 
and manufacturing

GET 1.100 77.077 55.077  

21c Brimscombe Port
Stroud District 

Council
1.650

Sub Totals  78.727 78.727 56.727 22.000
Without Cyber Business 

Park
 56.727    

Page 10



Page 5 of 5

Following submission at the end of July, we expect to hear the outcome of our bid by the time of the 
Autumn statement.

GFirst LEP asks the GEGJC to support its Growth Deal 3 submission and the proposed projects that 
have been prioritized within it.

Pete Carr, GFirst LEP 

28/06/16

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



23/06/16 to May 2016 Q1 2016/17 Single Local Growth Fund
Project management TIMELINE  Non Transport Schemes

Colour Code:
Refining Business Case
Project Planning & Development
Due Diligence and Board Approval
Capital Investment & Implementation / Delivery
Project Completed

ACCOUNTING YEARS 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
LEP LEAD Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Growth Deal July 14
Growth Hub Spokes Forecast Sarah Danson
Growth Hub Spokes Actual / Updated Forecast

Growth Hub Expansion Forecast Sarah D
Growth Hub Expansion Actual / Updated Forecast

Growth Hub STEM Forecast Mally Findlater
Growth Hub STEM Actual / Updated Forecast

Growth Hub Entrepreneur or STEM extra Forecast Mally Findlater 
Growth Hub Entrepreneur or STEM extra Actual / Updated Forecast

GREEN Forecast Martin Bruton
GREEN Actual / Updated Forecast

Growth Deal Extension Jan 15
Blackfriars and Quayside Regeneration Forecast Mike Curran
Blackfriars and Quayside Regeneration  Actual / Updated Forecast

Innovation for Rural and Agri‐Tech Forecast Barry Bodin‐Jones
Innovation for Rural and Agri‐Tech Actual / Updated Forecast

Supporting Retail Entrepreneurship Forecast Sarah Tyler
Supporting Retail Entrepreneurship Actual / Updated Forecast

Berkley Green Cyber Security Training and Conference Centre Forecast Martin Bruton

Berkley Green Cyber Security Training and Conference Centre Actual / 
Updated Forecast

Gloucestershire Airport South East Camp Development Project Forecast Mike Curran
Gloucestershire Airport South East Camp Development Project Actual / 
Updated Forecast

Advanced Renewable Energy Resource Centre (ARERC) Forecast Martin Bruton
Advanced Renewable Energy Resource Centre (ARERC) Actual / Updated 
Forecast

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



19/05/2016 Q1 2016/2017 Single Local Growth Fund
Project management TIMELINE Transport

Colour Code: nb 'Forecast' Data represents August 2015 baseline information
Scheme & Development
Prefered Start Date
Planning & Approvals
Due Diligence and Board Approval
final design and preparation
Delivery/ Construction Started
Construction Completed

ACCOUNTING YEARS 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 20120/21
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Growth Deal July 14
Enablers for Growth:
Pre‐Committed LGF Elmbridge Forecast

Submitted 15 Feb 16 Pre‐Committed LGF Elmbridge Actual / Updated Forecast

Competitive LGF ‐ Capital 
A419 corridor Forecast
A419 corridor Actual / Updated Forecast PROCUREMENT

Access to Berkeley site  Forecast
Access to Berkeley site Actual / Updated Forecast

updated May 2016 Access to Berkeley site Prefered Programme PROCUREMENT PHASE 1  LEP FUNDED PHASE 2 ‐ DEVELOPER FUNDED

Lydney strategy Forecast
Lydney strategy Actual / Updated Forecast PHASE 1 PHASE 2

LAND ACQUISITION

Berkeley bridges Forecast
Berkeley bridges Actual / Updated Forecast

Cinderford Northern Qtr Forecast
Cinderford Northern Qtr Actual / Updated Forecast

Updated May 2016 Glos South West Bypass Forecast 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
Glos South West Bypass Actual / Updated Forecast PROCUREMENT GCC FUNDED

LAND ACQUISITION

St Barnabas R'bout Forecast
St Barnabas R'bout Actual / Updated Forecast

B4063 Junction Forecast
B4063 Junction Actual / Updated Forecast PROCUREMENT

LAND ACQUISITION

GLTB ‐ Capital 
A40 Over Rnd Forecast

Submitted 09 May 16 A40 Over Rnd Actual / Updated Forecast

Abbeymead / Metz Way Forecast
Submitted 09 May 16 Abbeymead / Metz Way Actual / Updated Forecast

Gloucester Transport Hub/Kings Quarter Bus Station** 
Forecast
Gloucester Transport Hub Actual / Updated Forecast

Cheltenham Spa Railway Forecast
Cheltenham Spa Railway Actual / Updated Forecast

A40 Corridor Bus Priority* Forecast
Submitted 09 May 16 A40 Bus Priority Corridor* Actual / Updated Forecast

* The A40 Bus Priority and A40 Benhall schemes were merged into the A40 Corridor Bus Priority Scheme on 29/07/2015.
** Two separate funding applications (Gloucester Transport Hub and Kings Quarter Bus Station) were combined as a result of the GLTB fund integration into the Growth Fund

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



23/06/16 to May 2016 Q1 2016/17 Single Local Growth Fund notes RAU on Monday
Project management EXPENDITURE  Non‐Transport check B&Q numbers

ACCOUNTING YEARS
Total Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2015/16 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2016/17 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2017/18 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2018/19 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2019/20 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2020/21

Growth Deal July 14
Growth Hub Spokes Profile agreed May 2015  5.000£                    1.000£                    1.000£                    2.000£         2.000£                  ‐£                 ‐£                         0.750£     0.750£                   0.750£     0.750£                0.500£     0.500£                  5.000£     
Growth Hub Spokes Funding Agreement ‐£                        ‐£                        ‐£                       ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      ‐£          
Growth Hub Spokes Actual / Updated Forecast 5.000£                    ‐£                         £            1.021  2.000£         3.021£                  ‐£                 ‐£                         0.670£     0.670£                   0.769£     0.769£                0.540£     0.540£                  5.000£     

‐£                        ‐£                       ‐£          
Growth Hub Expansion Profile agreed May 2015  5.000£                    ‐£                        ‐£                        ‐£             ‐£                       2.000£             2.000£                    3.000£     3.000£                   ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      5.000£     
Growth Hub Expansion Funding Agreement ‐£                        ‐£                        ‐£                       ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      ‐£          
Growth Hub Expansion Actual / Updated Forecast 5.000£                    ‐£                        ‐£                        ‐£             ‐£                       1.921£             1.921£                    3.079£     3.079£                   ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      5.000£     

‐£                        ‐£                       ‐£          
Growth Hub STEM Profile agreed May 2015 2.000£                    1.500£                    1.500£                    0.500£         0.500£                  ‐£                 ‐£                         ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      2.000£     
Growth Hub STEM Funding Agreement (draft) 2.000£                    0.550£       0.852£                    0.598£                    2.000£                    ‐£                       ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      2.000£     
Growth Hub STEM Actual / Updated Forecast 2.000£                    0.550£       0.852£                    0.533£                    0.065£                    2.000£                    ‐£                       ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      2.000£     

‐£                        ‐£          
Growth Hub Entrepreneur or STEM extra  Profile agreed May 2015 0.096£                    ‐£                        ‐£                        0.019£         0.019£                  0.019£             0.019£                    0.019£     0.019£                   0.019£     0.019£                0.020£     0.020£                  0.096£     
Growth Hub Entrepreneur or STEM extra Funding Agreement ‐£                        ‐£                        ‐£                       ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      ‐£          
Growth Hub Entrepreneur or STEM extra Actual / Updated Forecast 0.096£                    0.096£                    0.096£                    ‐£                       ‐£                 ‐£                         ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      0.096£     

‐£          
GREEN Profile agreed May 2015 5.000£                    4.000£                    4.000£                    1.000£         1.000£                  ‐£                 ‐£                         ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      5.000£     
GREEN Funding Agreement 5.000£                    2.160£                    1.200£                    0.518£                    3.878£                    0.640£                0.482£                1.122£                  ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      5.000£     
GREEN Actual / Updated Forecast 5.000£                    2.160£                    1.200£                    0.518£                    3.878£                    0.640£                0.482£                1.122£                  ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      5.000£     

‐£          
Growth Deal Extension Jan 15 ‐£          
Blackfriars and Quayside Regeneration Profile agreed May 2015 4.130£                    1.000£                     £                1.000  2.400£         2.400£                  0.730£             0.730£                    ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      4.130£     

Blackfriars and Quayside Regeneration Funding Agreement (draft) 4.130£                   
 £                0.505   £                0.505 

0.420£                0.570£                0.595£                0.415£         2.000£                  0.400£         0.400£         0.400£         0.425£             1.625£                    ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      4.130£     
Blackfriars and Quayside Regeneration Actual / Updated Forecast 4.130£                     £                0.077   £                0.077  0.500£                0.750£                0.763£                0.415£         2.428£                  0.400£         0.400£         0.400£         0.425£             1.625£                    ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      4.130£     

‐£                        ‐£          
Innovation for Rural and Agri‐Tech Profile agreed May 2015 2.920£                     £                       ‐     £                       ‐    1.970£         1.970£                  0.950£             0.950£                    ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      2.920£     
Innovation for Rural and Agri‐Tech Funding Agreement ‐£                         £                       ‐    ‐£                       ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      ‐£          
Innovation for Rural and Agri‐Tech Actual / Updated Forecast 2.920£                    ‐£                           £                       ‐    2.642£                2.642£                  0.278£         0.278£                    ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      2.920£     

‐£                        ‐£          
Supporting Retail Entrepreneurship  Profile agreed May 2015 0.400£                    ‐£                           £                       ‐    0.400£         0.400£                  ‐£                 ‐£                         ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      0.400£     
Supporting Retail Entrepreneurship Funding Agreement ‐£                         £                       ‐    ‐£                       ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      ‐£          
Supporting Retail Entrepreneurship Actual / Updated Forecast 0.400£                     £                       ‐    0.400£         0.400£                  ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      0.400£     

‐£                        ‐£          
Berkley Green Cyber Security Training and Conference Centre Profile 
agreed May 2015 3.000£                    1.600£                    1.600£                    1.250£         1.250£                  0.150£             0.150£                    ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      3.000£     
Berkley Green Cyber Security Training and Conference Centre Funding 
Agreement 3.000£                    ‐£                        1.544£                0.306£                1.045£                0.052£         2.947£                  0.053£             0.053£                    ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      3.000£     
Berkley Green Cyber Security Training and Conference Centre Actual / 
Updated Forecast 3.000£                    ‐£                        2.947£         2.947£                  0.053£             0.053£                    ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      3.000£     

‐£                        ‐£          
Gloucestershire Airport South East Camp Development Project Profile 
agreed May 2015 0.550£                    0.550£                    0.550£                    ‐£             ‐£                       ‐£                 ‐£                         ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£                      0.550£     
Gloucestershire Airport South East Camp Development Project Funding 
Agreement (draft) 0.550£                   

 £                   0.550 
0.550£                    ‐£                       ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      0.550£     

Gloucestershire Airport South East Camp Development Project Actual / 
Updated Forecast 0.550£                     £                   0.550  0.550£                    ‐£                       ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      0.550£     

‐£                        ‐£          
Advanced Renewable Energy Resource Centre (ARERC) Profile agreed 
May 2015 4.000£                    ‐£                          ‐£                          ‐£             ‐£                       ‐£                 ‐£                         ‐£          ‐£                       0.500£     0.500£                3.500£     3.500£                  4.000£     
Advanced Renewable Energy Resource Centre (ARERC) Funding 
Agreement ‐£                        ‐£                          ‐£                       ‐£                         ‐£                       ‐£                     ‐£                      ‐£          
Advanced Renewable Energy Resource Centre (ARERC) Actual / Updated 
Forecast 4.000£                    ‐£                        ‐£                          ‐£             ‐£                       ‐£                 ‐£                         ‐£          ‐£                       0.500£     0.500£                3.500£     3.500£                  4.000£     

Totals:
Profile agreed May 2015 32.096£                 ‐£            ‐£                        ‐£                        9.650£                    9.650£                    ‐£                    ‐£                    ‐£                    9.539£         9.539£                  ‐£             ‐£             ‐£             3.849£             3.849£                    ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          3.769£     3.769£                   ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          1.269£     1.269£                ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          4.020£     4.020£                  64.192£   
Funding Agreements 14.680£                 0.550£       3.012£                    2.348£                    1.023£                    6.933£                    2.604£                1.358£                1.640£                0.467£         6.069£                  0.400£         0.400£         0.400£         0.478£             1.678£                    ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          ‐£                     
Actual / Updated Forecasts 32.096£                0.550£       3.012£                    2.283£                    0.756£                   6.601£                   3.782£               1.232£               1.784£               5.762£        12.560£               0.678£        0.400£        0.400£        2.399£             3.877£                   ‐£         ‐£         ‐£         3.749£    3.749£                  ‐£         ‐£         ‐£         1.269£    1.269£               ‐£         ‐£         ‐£         4.040£    4.040£                  64.192£   
Annual Totals:
Profile agreed May 2015 32.096£                 9.650£                      9.539£           3.849£               3.769£        1.269£        4.020£       
Funding Agreements 14.680£                 6.933£                      6.069£           1.678£               ‐£            ‐£            ‐£           
Actual / Updated Forecasts 32.096£                6.601£                      12.560£         3.877£               3.749£        1.269£        4.040£       

Cumulative totals
Profile agreed May 2015 9.650£                      19.189£       23.038£          26.807£   28.076£   32.096£  
Funding Agreements 6.933£                      13.002£       14.680£          14.680£   14.680£   14.680£  
Actual / Updated Forecasts 6.601£                      19.161£      23.038£          26.787£  28.056£  32.096£ 

nb Growth Hub spokes and Cyber Security delayed into 16/17
Accountable Body will make adjustment to delegated funds transfer to ensure return full 15/16. 
£1.021m (Spokes will moved from 15/16 to 16/17 and the reverse for the delegated transport funds KJ informed 100316
£1.6m (Cyber moved from 15/16 to 16/17, and the reverse done for the delegated schemes. KJ informed)

Blackfriars and Quayside is a delegated scheme, so the shortfall in 15/16 actual profile has been accounted as spend due to the funds being delegated

2020/212015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



15/06/2016 Q1 2016/2017 Single Local Growth Fund
Project management EXPENDITURE  Transport

ACCOUNTING YEARS
Total Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2015/16 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2016/17 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2017/18 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2018/19 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2019/20 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Growth Deal July 14
Enablers for Growth:
Pre‐Committed LGF Elmbridge Profile August 2015 ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Pre‐Committed LGF Elmbridge Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Pre‐Committed LGF Elmbridge Actual / Updated Forecast 9.070£        ‐£                      1.814£                   1.814£      1.814£      1.814£         7.256£                  1.814£      1.814£                  ‐£                     ‐£                   

‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   

Competitive LGF ‐ Capital  ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
A419 corridor Profile August 2015 4.360£        ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      0.360£        0.360£                 3.000£          3.000£                1.000£        
A419 corridor Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
A419 corridor Actual / Updated Forecast 4.360£        ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      0.360£      0.360£                 2.000£      0.500£      0.500£          3.000£                0.250£      0.250£      0.250£      0.250£        

‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Access to Berkeley site Profile August 2015 1.150£        ‐£                      ‐£                       0.150£         0.150£                  0.200£        0.200£                 0.800£          0.800£               
Access to Berkeley site Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Access to Berkeley site Actual / Updated Forecast 1.150£        ‐£                      ‐£                       0.038£      0.038£      0.038£      0.038£         0.150£                  0.200£      0.200£                 0.400£      0.400£      0.800£               

‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Lydney strategy Profile August 2015 1.000£        ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      1.000£        1.000£                 ‐£                   
Lydney strategy Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Lydney strategy Actual / Updated Forecast 1.000£        ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      0.400£      0.060£      0.100£      0.060£        0.620£                 0.120£      0.120£      0.140£      0.380£               

‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Berkeley bridges Profile August 2015 1.990£        ‐£                      1.990£         1.990£                  ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Berkeley bridges Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Berkeley bridges Actual / Updated Forecast 1.990£        ‐£                      0.350£                   1.000£      0.500£      0.140£         1.990£                  ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   

‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Cinderford Northern Qtr Profile August 2015 3.800£        ‐£                      3.800£         3.800£                  ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Cinderford Northern Qtr Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Cinderford Northern Qtr Actual / Updated Forecast 3.800£        0.484£           0.484£                  0.351£                   0.874£      0.854£      0.854£         2.933£                  0.273£      0.090£      0.021£         0.384£                  ‐£                     ‐£                   

‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Glos South West Bypass Profile August 2015 2.000£        ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      2.000£        2.000£                 ‐£                   
Glos South West Bypass Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Glos South West Bypass Actual / Updated Forecast 2.000£        ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      0.500£      1.500£      2.000£                 ‐£                   

‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
St Barnabas R'bout Profile August 2015 1.000£        ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     0.150£          0.150£                0.850£        
St Barnabas R'bout Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
St Barnabas R'bout Actual / Updated Forecast 1.000£        ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     0.100£      0.020£      0.020£      0.010£          0.150£                0.200£      0.200£      0.200£      0.250£        

‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
B4063 Junction Profile August 2015 1.600£        ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     0.600£          0.600£                1.000£        
B4063 Junction Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
B4063 Junction Actual / Updated Forecast 1.600£        ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     0.300£      0.100£      0.100£      0.100£          0.600£                0.250£      0.250£      0.250£      0.250£        

‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   

GLTB ‐ Capital  ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
A40 Over Rnd Profile August 2015 2.230£        ‐£                      0.500£         0.500£                  1.730£         1.730£                  ‐£                     ‐£                   
A40 Over Rnd Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   

09‐May‐16 A40 Over Rnd Actual / Updated Forecast 2.230£        ‐£              ‐£               ‐£                      ‐£                        ‐£          ‐£          0.410£         0.410£                  0.050£      0.050£      0.050£      0.770£         0.920£                  0.900£      0.900£                 ‐£                   
‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   

Abbeymead / Metz Way Profile August 2015 0.500£        ‐£                      0.280£         0.280£                  0.220£         0.220£                  ‐£                     ‐£                   
Abbeymead / Metz Way Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   

09‐May‐16 Abbeymead / Metz Way Actual / Updated Forecast 0.500£        ‐£              ‐£               ‐£                      ‐£                        ‐£          0.200£      0.080£         0.280£                  0.220£      0.220£                  ‐£                     ‐£                   
‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   

Gloucester Transport Hub/Kings Quarter Bus Station ** Profile 
August 2015 6.400£        0.425£           0.425£                  5.475£         5.475£                  0.500£         0.500£                  ‐£                     ‐£                   
Gloucester Transport Hub Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Gloucester Transport Hub Actual / Updated Forecast 6.400£        0.453£           0.453£                  £0.572 0.450£      0.710£      2.250£         3.982£                  1.965£      1.965£                  ‐£                     ‐£                   

‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Cheltenham Spa Railway Profile August 2015 1.497£        ‐£                      1.497£         1.497£                  ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Cheltenham Spa Railway Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
Cheltenham Spa Railway Actual / Updated Forecast 1.497£        ‐£                      0.500£         0.500£                  0.500£      0.497£      0.997£                  ‐£                     ‐£                   

‐£            ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   
A40 Corridor Bus Priority Scheme Profile August 2015 3.873£        0.383£           0.383£                  2.500£         2.500£                  0.990£         0.990£                  ‐£                     ‐£                   
A40 Corridor Bus Priority Scheme*  Funding Agreement ‐£            ‐£                      ‐£                       ‐£                      ‐£                     ‐£                   

09‐May‐16 A40 Corridor Bus Priority Scheme* Actual / Updated Forecast 3.873£        ‐£                      0.500£      0.075£         0.575£                  0.075£      0.075£      0.075£      0.773£         0.998£                  1.000£      1.300£      2.300£                 ‐£                   

* The A40 Bus Lane and A40 Bus Priority Corridor schemes were merged into the A40 Corridor Bus Priority Scheme on 29/07/2015.
** Two separate funding applications (Gloucester Transport Hub and Kings Quarter Bus Station) were combined as a result of the GLTB fund integration into the Growth Fund

Totals:
Profile agreed August 2015 31.400£      ‐£            ‐£              ‐£              0.808£           0.808£                  ‐£                        ‐£          ‐£          16.042£       16.042£                ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          3.590£         3.590£                  ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          3.560£        3.560£                 ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          4.550£          4.550£                ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          2.850£        
Funding Agreements ‐£            ‐£            ‐£              ‐£              ‐£               ‐£                      ‐£                        ‐£          ‐£          ‐£              ‐£                       ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          ‐£             ‐£                      ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          ‐£            ‐£                     ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          ‐£               ‐£                    ‐£          ‐£          ‐£          ‐£            
Actual / Updated Forecasts 31.400£      ‐£            ‐£              ‐£              0.937£           0.937£                  1.273£                   2.324£      2.764£      4.309£         10.670£                2.847£      0.933£      0.252£      1.601£         7.447£                  3.000£      1.720£      1.600£      0.060£        6.380£                 2.920£      0.640£      0.760£      0.610£          4.930£                0.700£      0.700£      0.700£      0.750£        
Annual Totals:
Profile agreed August 2015 0.808£           16.042£       3.590£         3.560£        4.550£          2.850£        
Funding Agreements ‐£               ‐£              ‐£             ‐£            ‐£               ‐£            
Actual / Updated Forecasts 0.937£           10.670£       5.633£         6.380£        4.930£          2.850£        

Cumulative total August 2015 0.808£           16.850£       20.440£       24.000£      28.550£        31.400£      
Actual / Updated Forecasts 0.937£           11.607£       17.240£       23.620£      28.550£        31.400£      

Funds to be transferred from AB to Transport account £3.52 £13.54 £3.75 £3.39 £5.33 £1.88
Cumulative total received £3.52 £17.06 £20.81 £24.19 £29.52 £31.40

2020/212015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Plan AGENDA NO: 6

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 

Report author Nigel Riglar
Tel no: 01452 425527
Email: nigel.riglar@gloucestershire.gov.uk 
 

Background 
documents

1. GEGJC Infrastructure Investment Pipeline (GIIP) (see Annex 1)

2. District Council Infrastructure Delivery Plans:
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/extra/article/107553/Gloucestershire-
Strategic-Infrastructure-Delivery-Plan-SIDP
http://www.stroud.gov.uk/info/plan_strat/stroud_idp.pdf
http://www.fdean.gov.uk/media/Assets/ForwardPlan/documents/AllocationsPl
an/FOD_IDP_WD_Issue_16_Feb_2015.pdf
http://www.gct-
jcs.org/Documents/EvidenceBase/JCSIDPMainReportISSUE2013-10-15.pdf
http://consult.cotswold.gov.uk/portal/fp/infrastructure_delivery_plan/draft_infra
structure_delivery_plan_2013?tab=files

3. GFirst LEP - Gloucestershire submission under Growth Deal:
http://www.gfirstlep.com/Our-Priorities/Our-Vision/ 

4. GEGJC – Infrastructure Investment Prioritisation Paper, December 2015
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/b11304/Agenda%20item%2
05%20Wednesday%2009-Dec-
2015%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Joint%20C
ommittee.pdf?T=9

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

As listed above or on request from the report author.

Main consultees A wide range of public and private sector representatives have provided input 
to the various Council and GFirst LEP processes that have informed the 
development of the Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Pipeline and 
the recommendations set out in this report. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6

mailto:nigel.riglar@gloucestershire.gov.uk
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/extra/article/107553/Gloucestershire-Strategic-Infrastructure-Delivery-Plan-SIDP
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/extra/article/107553/Gloucestershire-Strategic-Infrastructure-Delivery-Plan-SIDP
http://www.stroud.gov.uk/info/plan_strat/stroud_idp.pdf
http://www.fdean.gov.uk/media/Assets/ForwardPlan/documents/AllocationsPlan/FOD_IDP_WD_Issue_16_Feb_2015.pdf
http://www.fdean.gov.uk/media/Assets/ForwardPlan/documents/AllocationsPlan/FOD_IDP_WD_Issue_16_Feb_2015.pdf
http://www.gct-jcs.org/Documents/EvidenceBase/JCSIDPMainReportISSUE2013-10-15.pdf
http://www.gct-jcs.org/Documents/EvidenceBase/JCSIDPMainReportISSUE2013-10-15.pdf
http://consult.cotswold.gov.uk/portal/fp/infrastructure_delivery_plan/draft_infrastructure_delivery_plan_2013?tab=files
http://consult.cotswold.gov.uk/portal/fp/infrastructure_delivery_plan/draft_infrastructure_delivery_plan_2013?tab=files
http://www.gfirstlep.com/Our-Priorities/Our-Vision/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/b11304/Agenda%20item%205%20Wednesday%2009-Dec-2015%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Joint%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/b11304/Agenda%20item%205%20Wednesday%2009-Dec-2015%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Joint%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/b11304/Agenda%20item%205%20Wednesday%2009-Dec-2015%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Joint%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/b11304/Agenda%20item%205%20Wednesday%2009-Dec-2015%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Joint%20Committee.pdf?T=9


Planned dates 28 July 2016 – submission deadline for Local Growth Fund applications 
through GFirst LEP.

Purpose of report This report:
1. Provides an update on the GIIP; and
2. Informs the Joint Committee on the strategic infrastructure projects 

promoted to GFirst LEP for consideration under Local Growth Deal 3.

Recommendations

The Joint Committee resolves to:
1. Note the information provided in this paper as an update to bringing 

forward Gloucestershire’s growth related strategic infrastructure 
priorities; and

2. Approve the inclusion of Chepstow Bypass onto the GIIP 

Reasons for 
recommendations

To enable the GEGJC to have a clear understanding of the progress made 
against the GIIP and agree new project additions.

Resource 
Implications

There are no direct resource implications associated with this update paper. 

Background 

1. The GIIP comprises a list of infrastructure requirements brought together across 
the whole of Gloucestershire. It is reviewed, refreshed and updated on a regular 
basis to take account of emerging infrastructure requirements and funding 
opportunities. The GIIP is a live document which is actively managed through the 
GEGJC Senior Officer Group.  

Recent GIIP developments

2. There are three areas to update regarding the GIIP. These are:
a. Projects which have been put forward for Local Growth Deal 3; 
b. Adoption of the Local Transport Plan and the impact of additional 

infrastructure requirements; and
c. Additional infrastructure requirements which are being considered for 

inclusion in the updated GIIP.

Page 22



Single Local Growth Deal – Growth Deal 3 Submission

3. Committee members will recall previous work undertaken by the Committee to 
draw upon the GIIP to inform the early project shortlisting stages for the Growth 
Deal 3 funding opportunity. Accordingly, back in December 2015, GEGJC 
endorsed a recommendation to promote 7 strategic infrastructure schemes from 
the GIIP to the LEP for consideration in the project prioritisation process.

    
4. These projects were:

 A40 (Longford Traffic Mitigations)

 Gloscol, Forest of Dean Campus

 Cinderford Northern Quarter Community infrastructure and site 
preparation programme

 Brimscombe Port brownfield site (HCA funding gap)

 Littlecombe Employment Land

 Gloucester Railway Station

 Tewkesbury Town Centre Masterplan

5. A number of final business cases have since been put forward for consideration 
by the LEP, as part of their Local Growth Deal 3 submission (GD 3). These 
projects have been assessed alongside all of the projects received by the LEP 
and reviewed to measure their strategic fit, commercial viability and ability to 
deliver against Growth Deal criteria. All the final business cases have been taken 
through a rigorous process to ensure that the Gloucestershire submission 
creates a compelling case for further Government investment.

6. As advised by the LEP, following a robust project selection process undertaken 
by the LEP Board, 11 projects are now likely to be included in the final GD 3 
submission to Government. The resulting list includes 6 of the original 7 strategic 
infrastructure project recommendations from the GIIP, but excludes Tewkesbury 
Town Centre Masterplan.

7. These projects, if successful in the final submission process and agreed by 
Government, would represent a significant investment in the infrastructure of 
Gloucestershire. 

Local Transport Plan Adoption
8. On 29 June, Full Council at Gloucester County Council adopted the Local 

Transport Plan which updates the plan adopted in 2011. This reviewed 

Page 23



document highlights a number of additional policies which will support the overall 
transport considerations. 

9. In order to ensure that there is consistency with the GIIP, the Senior Officer 
Group will be exploring the best way to integrate new potential projects. This will 
involve cross checking projects that feature on the GIIP with the Local Transport 
Plan and returning to the Joint Committee with the rationale and a set of 
recommendations for inclusion. 

Additional Infrastructure Requirements
10. In addition to the projects that will be considered as part of the Local Transport 

Plan adoption, there is a further project that is recommended for inclusion onto 
the GIIP. This project has been raised by Monmouthshire Council and is to 
support the Chepstow Bypass, relieving pressure on the network. 

11.As a business case has not yet been developed, it is proposed that details are 
brought back to a future meeting for discussion and in the meantime will be 
placed on the GIIP in Category E – long-term priority; not yet at proposal stage.

Next Steps
12.Finally, the Senior Officer Group continues to review funding opportunities 

available to ensure that funds can be secured to deliver the pipeline and meet 
Gloucestershire’s infrastructure requirements. 

13.  Members may also be interested to learn that all of the projects within the GIIP 
have been cross referenced with District Infrastructure Delivery Plans (IDPs) and 
are now mapped into a GIS system. This will allow both planned and critical 
infrastructure needs/requirements to be viewed and analysed in a variety of 
ways and overlaid with other complementary needs analysis information. 
Accordingly, a demonstration will be provided at a future GEGJC meeting to aid 
Member engagement with this initiative.  

Page 24



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 1

Type

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

As outlined on 

Page 1 above

Employment, 

Housing, 

Regeneration, 

Transport, 

Education, 

Energy and 

Digital

A project name 

has been given 

which best 

describes the 

scheme, 

infrastructure 

or site for 

development

Concept, 

Business Case 

Development, 

Pre-

Application, 

Approved, 

Start on Site, 

Delivered

The 

anticipated 

start date 

(Start on 

Site) of the 

project

The total 

expected cost 

of the project

Total 

amount 

of 

funding 

secured 

against 

the 

project

Source of 

funding 

that has 

been 

secured

The 

proposed 

source of 

funding 

that needs 

to be 

secured

The number 

of dwellings 

that the site 

will bring 

forward

Number 

of jobs 

that will 

be 

created in 

each 

category

Employm

ent land 

type 

Commerc

ial, Retail 

or 

Industrial

The 

amount of 

employme

nt land 

created in 

hectares

Skills and 

Employment 

outcomes

Transport 

infrastruct

ure that 

will be 

brought 

forward 

under the 

scheme

Private 

sector 

leverage 

that will be 

brought 

forward 

under the 

scheme

Outline of 

other 

outcomes 

that will be 

brought 

forward 

under the 

scheme

Lead 

organisati

on details

Lead 

officer 

details

Red, 

Amber 

or 

Green

Links to 

other 

projects 

on the 

pipeline 

where 

interdepe

ndencies 

have 

been 

created

A Transport Cheltenham 

Spa Rail Station 

improvements 

phase 1

Business Case 

Development

2015/16 9.8m Phase 1. 

5 

element

s fully 

funded 

at c£5m

Growth 

Deal 

(£1.497m); 

Cycle-Rail 

(£0.73m); 

NSIP and 

AfA 

(c.£2m)Co

mmercial 

facilities 

c700k for 

70 

additional 

surface car 

spaces

Commerci

al facilities 

fund 

(c£0.75m 

with a 

second 

round c£4-

5m)

0 up to 10 Limited 

retail to 

service 

passenger 

need

Improved 

connectivit

y to 

London 

and SE via 

train 

service 

improveme

nts; 

improved 

patronage 

through 

station 

improveme

nts and 

better 

access

Core county 

connectivity

Cheltenha

m

CBC/NR

/FGW

Amber Rail 

Infrastruc

ture 

Projects

GLOUCESTERSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT PIPELINE
Lead Delivery OutputsFunding arrangementTimeframeInvestment  

P
age 25



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 2

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

A Transport Cinderford 

Northern 

Quarter Spine  

Road Phase 1

Approved 2015/16 11.5m 3.8m      

3.5m

Growth 

Deal    GIIF    

S106/Gro

wth Deal 

Pipeline 

£4.1m 

195 

dwellings

1000 new 

jobs 

18,800 sq m 

employmen

t uses (B1, 

B2, B8) 

School 

Places

New 

access to 

college, 

main link 

to new 

employem

ent and 

residential 

areas and 

new route 

from 

A4136 to 

Cinderford

£100m, 

public/priva

te 

investment

Potential 

Enterprise 

Zone bid Key 

development 

site 

enablement   

7750 sq m 

education 

campus   

3000 sq m 

hotel     Spine 

Road to 

facilitate NQ 

development 

relief to 

Steam Mills

Forest of 

Dean

FODDC

/GCC

Amber Cinderfor

d Projects

A Transport Gloucester 

Blackfriars 

redevelopment 

incl highways re-

alignment

2016 4.1m Growth 

Deal

CCT            

S106         

CIL

Glouceste

r City / 

GCC

A Transport Gloucester 

Transport Hub, 

incl new bus 

station

Business Case 

Development

2016 6.4m         

3m

Growth 

Deal 

(£1.7m incl 

LTB)   GIIF  

Local 

Authority

Glouceste

r City / 

GCC

Amber Station 

Improvem

ent 

projects

A Education Berkeley  UTC  

GREEN  Cyber 

Security 

Advanced 

Renewables 

Resource 

Centre Growth 

projects cluster 

enabling 

infrastructure

Pre application 2016/17 £40m Phase 1 

fully 

funded£

5m

£4m

£3m

Growth 

Deal 

Private 

Sector 

EUSIF

350 jobs 

created 

per year; 

300 jobs 

safeguard

ed

7 ha Business 

start-

ups/incubati

on – 20 per 

year 

increasing 

10% year on 

year; 

Enabling 

infrastructur

e for 

approved 

skills/workfor

ce 

development 

projects

SGS/SDC/

GCC

Amber Decommi

ssionned 

Berkeley 

Power 

Station

P
age 26



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 3

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

A Housing Stroud Valleys 

Initiative / 

Flood 

alleviation 

Phase 1

Concept 2017/18 £600k Fully 

Funded

£600k SDC S106, CIL, 

Growth 

Deal, HCA, 

EA, SDC

450 500 Key 

development 

site 

enablement; 

Flood 

alleviation 

for valley 

bottom 

regeneration 

sites totalling 

over 100ha

SDC/GCC Barry 

Wyatt

Green

A Transport A40 Highway 

Improvements

2016 Growth 

deal

Core county 

connectivity; 

congestion 

relief; 

business 

productivity 

& investment

GCC with 

Stagecoac

h

A Transport Cheltenham 

Transport Plan 

and associated 

public realm 

improvements 

plus key 

developments

Approved On-going 

but next 

major 

phase 2016 -

2018

Brewery II 

£30m; 

Beechwood 

£30m; public 

realm £3m

Yes Private 

investors 

plus CBC & 

GCC

GCC / CBC 

/ 

Developer 

funding / 

LSTF

17 Direct c800 Existing 

retail

Apprenticesh

ips

Improve 

pedestrian 

and cycle 

connectivit

y

£60m plus 

spin-offs as 

aresult of 

improving 

draw of the 

town 

centre

Links to LEP 

retail 

pathfinder 

and potential 

retail lab

Cheltenha

m

GCC/CB

C

Green

A Transport Highway 

improvement 

schemes – 

A419, Glos SW 

Bypass, St 

Barnabas 

roundabout, 

B4063 Jctn, 

Lydney strategy

2015/16 Fully 

Funded

Growth 

Deal

Growth 

Deal 

(£10m) 

Local 

authority 

funding

Core county 

connectivity; 

congestion 

relief; 

business 

productivity 

& investment

GCC

A Transport A40 

improvements 

Abbeymead/M

etz Way & incl 

Cheltenham 

Spa rail station

2015/16 Fully 

Funded

Growth 

Deal

Growth 

Deal 

(£10m) 

Local 

authority 

funding

Core county 

connectivity; 

congestion 

relief; 

business 

productivity 

& investment

GCC

P
age 27



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 4

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

A Transport Gloucestershire 

Airport

2015/16 Growth 

Deal 

(£550k) 

Local 

authority 

funding

Core county 

connectivity 

& key; 

development 

site 

enablement 

in support of 

Growth Zone

TBC/CBC/

Glos City 

Council

Amber

A Energy Waste to 

Energy 

Incinerator, 

Javelin Park, 

Haresfield

Business Case 

Development

2015/16 Amber HighCourt 

challenge

B Education Gloscol, Forest 

of Dean 

Campus

Business Case 

Development

2016/17 £15m 10.8m 9.45m 

(gloscol); 

1.35m 

(HCA)

Growth 

Deal

Enabler 

for eco-

park 

develop

ment to 

support 

4465 jobs 

indirectly

School 

places; 10% 

rise in 

attainment 

by 2019; 33% 

reduction in 

NEET 

numbers 

over 2 years; 

apprenticesh

ips increased 

by 100% by 

2019; 

progression 

into HE 

increased by 

10% by 2020

Forest of 

Dean

FODDC

/GCC

Amber Links to 

Cinderfor

d

P
age 28



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 5

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

B Regeneration Cinderford 

Northern 

Quarter 

Community 

infrastructure 

and site 

preparation 

programme.  

(Linked to  item 

13, but 

separately 

required to 

enhance 

viability of 

development 

site)

Approved 2016/17 £1.85m S106/Gro

wth Deal

195 

dwellings

50 

temporar

y 

constructi

on jobs

5,800 sq m 

employmen

t space 

(hotel site)

£42m 

private 

investment 

(whole of 

Cinderford 

not just 

NQ). New 

mixed site 

containing 

education, 

housing 

and 

employmen

t

3,000 sq m 

hotel 

floorpace (80-

100 bed),   

7.77 ha of 

land 

surveyed and 

licenced to 

allow new 

mixed-use 

development

. FoDDC is 

working to 

commission 

a site 

constraints 

and 

remediation 

plan for each 

development 

plot.

Forest of 

Dean

FODDC

/GCC

Amber Wider 

Cinderfor

d 

developm

ents

B Regeneration Brimscombe 

Port Flood 

prevention, 

road and canal 

infrastructure

Business Case 

Development

2016/17 £5.1m 2m HCA (to be 

submitted) 

SDC S106

150+ 100 2000m sq Regeneration 

of 10.2 acre 

brownfield 

development 

site including 

reinstatemen

t of a section 

of the former 

Cotswold 

Canal and 

Brimscombe 

Port basin.  

Treatment of 

contaminate

d land 5ha 

reclaimed 

land for 

development

SDC Alison 

Fisk, 

Head of 

Asset 

Manag

ement, 

SDC

P
age 29



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 6

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

B Regeneration Canal Phase 1A 

& 1B 

Restoration of 

10 miles of 

Cotswold 

Canals Flood 

prevention 

infrastructure

Business Case 

Development

2016/17 20m CCT            

S106         

CIL        

HLF (about 

to be 

submitted) 

(£15m)

250 Indirect 340 11,000 sqm 2000 primary 

school pupils 

involved in 

canal-related 

learning. 

Several 

hundred 

volunteers 

upskilled. 

Young 

people with 

learning 

difficulties 

assimilated 

into 

volunteer 

groups.

Sustainable 

multi-use 

path 

created 

between 

Saul 

Junction 

and 

Brimscomb

e. Stroud 

becomes 

accessible 

to the 

national 

waterway 

network

£50m The outputs 

are based on 

actual 

outcomes for 

phase 1A 

(Stonehouse 

– 

Brimscombe) 

between 

2006 and 

2015. The 

economic 

figures are 

reduced by 

50% to 

reflect the 

different 

nature of 

phase 1B and 

the slightly 

shorter 

length. 

Cotswold 

Canal 

Trust/SDC

Dave 

Marsha

ll, Canal 

Project 

Manag

er, SDC

B Transport Gloucester 

Railway Station

Start on Site 2016/17 £9.6m Growth 

Deal

200 

indirectly

4.25ha 6 

Apprenticesh

ips

250 new 

car parking 

spaces; 

improved 

egress 

from 

existing car 

park; new 

access to 

station 

from north 

eastern 

side; 

improved 

pedestrian 

connectivit

y 

(underpass

); better 

links to 

transport 

hub/city 

centre

£1.3m Improved 

pedestrian 

environment 

at the front 

of the 

station; 

Improved 

image of the 

city; 

Potential to 

bring about 

modal shift in 

local NHS 

Trust staff's 

travel 

arrangement

s and the 

supply chain 

of the 

hospital;

Glouceste

r City 

Council; 

Anthon

y 

Hodge, 

Head of 

Regene

ration 

and 

Econo

mic 

Develo

pment, 

GCC

Need to 

get access 

to sale of 

land from 

Ministry 

of Justice; 

Need 

Heads of 

Terms 

issued by 

Great 

Western 

Railway 

for use of 

the site. 

P
age 30



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 7

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

B Regeneration Delivery of the 

Tewkesbury 

Town Centre 

Masterplan to 

enable the 

historic market 

town to fulfil its 

potential as a 

key gateway 

into 

Gloucestershire 

and vibrant 

service centre 

for the adjacent 

M5 Growth 

Zone. 

2016/17 £5m £9m TBC, TTC, 

GET

S106 CIL 

LSIF HLF 

(bid yet to 

be 

submitted)

Estimated 

130 Units

70FTE 

jobs in 

retail, 

hospitalit

y 

Constructi

on jobs 

estimated 

at 45; 

apprentic

es

Retail space 

to be 

created

Improvemen

ts to public 

realm 

improvemen

ts to 

riverside and 

key links to 

riverside, re-

use of vacant 

sites to 

provide 

employment 

opportunities 

and to 

increase the 

vitality and 

viability of 

the town 

centre. 

Project will 

be delivered 

in phases  -

with likely 

start 

2015/16. 

Potential 

completion 

2019/20.

TBC

B Housing Littlecombe 

Mixed 

Regeneration 

Site

Start on site 2015/16 3m Critical 

funding 

gap Not 

fully 

funded

S106 SDC 500 

dwellings

1000 jobs 1.7 ha 

employmen

t land

Key 

development 

site

SDC Alison 

Fisk, 

Head of 

Asset 

Manag

ement, 

SDC

Amber

P
age 31



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 8

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

B Employment West 

Cheltenham 

delivery of 70 

hectares of 

employment 

land; currently 

safeguarded 

subject to 

Feasibility

Business Case 

Development

Post 2016 £10m £5m Private 

sector

Growth 

Deal

TBC (link 

to high 

value jobs 

- cyber 

security)

10 per 

acre - 

potentiall

y 16,000 

in long 

term

25,000 sq ft 

per acre. 

Whole 

scheme 

3,000,000ft

²

£5m 

anticipated

JCS/CBC Jeremy 

William

son

Red Linked to 

Feasibility 

of wider 

JCS 

examinati

on (R54) 

and M5 

Jct 10 

(R56)

C Regeneration Gloucester City 

Centre, Action 

Plan & Public 

Realm 

Improvements

2016/20 4.9m Gloucester 

City 

Council/SE

P/County 

Council

Project will 

be delivered 

in phases  -

with likely 

start 

2015/16. 

Potential 

completion 

2019/20

Glouceste

r City / 

GCC

C Transport Gloucestershire 

Airport - Capital 

of General 

Aviation

Business Case 

Development

2016/17 £2m 10 3 

Apprenticesh

ips

C Transport Cirencester 

Town Centre 

Parking

Business Case 

Development

2017/18 Support to 

retail 

businesses

Cotswold

s

CDC Amber

P
age 32



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 9

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

C Digital Broadband 

Infrastructure 

Enhancement 

Phase 1

2015/16 Fully 

Funded

BDUK      

GCC    EU 

Funding

Core county 

connectivity; 

THP, take up 

rates; 

business 

productivity 

& investment

GCC Green

P
age 33



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 10

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

C Regeneration A46 Key  

transport 

infrastructure

Business Case 

Development

2020/21 £45m 

comprising 

Scheme 

development-

emerging JCS 

schemes £2m; 

Strategic 

Highway (M5 

Junction 9) – 

work package 1 

£8m; (M5 

Junction 9) – 

work package 2  

£8m; (A46) – 

work package 1 

£8m; (A46) – 

work package 2 

£3m; Local 

Highways – 

work package 1 

£2.5m; work 

package 2 £6m; 

Active Travel – 

work package 1 

£7.5m

TTC Potential 

S106/ 

CIL/LSIF/G

rowth 

Deal 

(DCLG 

capacity 

fund for 

technical 

skill and 

project 

managem

ent input)

MOD 

Ashchurch 

allocation 

to deliver 

2725 homes

500 on 

MOD 

Aschurch 

strategic 

allocation

; further 

900 

associate

d with 

developm

ent of 

other 

strategic 

sites

14.3ha 

employmen

t site and 

20 ha of 

employmen

t land

Sustainabl

e transport 

links and 

improved 

connection

s to 

Tewkesbur

y town

The A46/J9 

area is under 

pressure 

from existing 

traffic usage 

and from 

growth, 

specifically 

JCS strategic 

allocation A9 

(MOD 

Ashchurch 

and adjoining 

land) and A8 

– land to the 

south of the 

A46

TCB/GCC

C Transport Dualling the 

A419 between 

J13 of the M5 

and Chapmans 

Roundabout

Business Case 

Development

2017 7m would 

enable 

eco-park 

developm

ent and 

support 

4465 jobs 

indirectly

Without 

road 

improveme

nt the 

highway 

network in 

the locality 

will be over 

capacity

Alasdai

r 

Campb

ell, 

Ecotrici

ty

P
age 34



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 11

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

D Housing Lydney 

Community 

infrastructure 

to support 

multiple 

regeneration 

projects 

including 

harbourside,  

east of Lydney 

new 

neighbourhood, 

highway 

improvements, 

pedestrian & 

cycle links and 

station 

masterplan to 

transform 

passenger 

facilities inc 

additional 

parking.

Start on Site 2013/14 5-10m 1m Growth 

Deal/ S106

£6.9m 

Lydney 

Transport 

Strategy 

pipeline 

bid and 

£2.5M 

Destinatio

n Forest 

pipeline 

bid 

submitted, 

balance 

S106. 

Coastal 

Revival 

Fund

1900 

dwellings 

total, 1684 

east of 

Lydney

30ha 

employmen

t land 

(10Ha B1, 

10 Ha B2, 

10 Ha B8)

School 

Places

 station 

and 

connection

s to  East of 

Lydney

£100m+ £27.5m 

regeneration 

of 

harbourside 

and town 

centre, Air 

quality in 

designated 

AQMA 

improved

Forest of 

Dean

FODDC

/GCC

Amber

D Housing West of 

Stonehouse

Approved 2015/16 Not fully 

funded

S106 1,350 10 ha Key 

development 

site 

enablement

SDC/GCC Barry 

Wyatt

D Housing Hunts Grove – 

Gloucester 

Fringe

Start on site 2011/12 Not fully 

funded

S106 2,500 5.2 ha Key 

development 

site 

enablement

SDC/GCC Barry 

Wyatt

P
age 35



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 12

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

D Housing North East Cam Approved 2018/19 Not fully 

funded

S106 450 12 ha Key 

development 

site 

enablement

SDC/GCC Barry 

Wyatt

D Regeneration Sharpness 

(Berkeley 

Cluster)

Pre application 2017/18 Not fully 

funded

S106 CIL 

Private 

finance

300 17 ha Key 

development 

site 

enablement; 

Flood 

attenuation 

works to key 

growth site; 

500,000 sq ft 

warehousing 

complex

SDC/GCC Barry 

Wyatt

D Regeneration Chesterton 

(South of 

Cirencester) 

Community 

infrastructure  -  

pre-school, 

primary, 

secondary, 

library 

contribution

Pre application 2017 15.5m S106/CIL/L

SIF

2350 

dwellings

9.1 ha 

employmen

t land

Key 

development 

site 

enablement

Cotswold

s

CDC/G

CC

Red Link to 

RAU 

Project 

(Row 52)

D Housing Community 

infrastructure 

from housing 

development

2017 3.5m Fully 

Funded

S106/CIL 531 

dwellings 

across a 

range of 

sites

Key 

development 

site 

enablement

Cotswold

s

CDC/G

CC

Amber

P
age 36



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 13

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

D Transport Programme of 

Jct 14 highways 

infrastructure 

projects 

required to 

enable delivery 

of Stroud Local 

Plan

TBC £4.9m Not fully 

funded

GCC Road, 

roundabout 

and junction 

improvemen

ts identified 

in SDC Local 

Plan needed 

to deliver the 

11,000 

homes

SDC / 

GCC

Barry 

Wyatt

D Regeneration North West 

Cheltenham 

(Elms Park) 

Community 

infrastructure 

TBC 31.6m Not fully 

funded

S106 CIL 

LSIF

4785 

dwellings of 

which 2,225 

within CBC

23.5 ha 

employmen

t land

JCS 

authoritie

s

D Regeneration South 

Cheltenham/ 

Leckhampton 

Community 

infrastructure

TBC 7.4m Fully 

funded? 

Position 

to be 

clarified

S106 CIL 

LSIF

1124 

dwellings of 

which 764 in 

CBC and 360 

in TBC

JCS 

authoritie

s

D North 

Churchdown 

Community 

infrastructure  

TBC 3.5m Fully 

funded? 

Position 

to be 

clarified

S106 CIL 

LSIF

532 

dwellings

Key 

development 

site 

enablement

TBC/GCC

D Regeneration South 

Churchdown 

Community 

infrastructure

TBC 5.7m Fully 

funded? 

Position 

to be 

clarified

S106 CIL 

LSIF

868 

dwellings

17.4ha 

employmen

t land

Key 

development 

site 

enablement

TBC/GCC

P
age 37



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 14

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

D Regeneration North 

Brockworth 

Community 

infrastructure

TBC 9.9m Not fully 

funded

S106 CIL 

LSIF

1500 

dwellings

Key 

development 

site 

enablement

TBC/GCC

D Regeneration MoD Site at 

Ashchurch and 

adjacent 

private land. 

Community 

infrastructure 

This is JCS site 

A9. Forms part 

of J9 Growth 

Zone in SEP

2016/17 23m of 

community 

infrastructure 

(excluding 

highway costs)

Fully 

funded 

S106 CIL 

LSIF

2725 

dwellings

20 ha 

employmen

t land 

Key 

development 

site 

enablement. 

Anticipated 

planning 

application 

2016.

TBC/GCC

D Regeneration Ashchurch 

Access 

improvements - 

relates to JCS 

sites A8 and A9

TBC S106 CIL 

LSIF

14.3ha 

employmen

t site

Key 

development 

site 

enablement

TBC/GCC

P
age 38



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 15

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

D Regeneration Cheltenham 

High Street

Business Case 

Development

2016/17 1.085m 0.59m CBC £450k; 

GCC £140k

Growth 

Deal

Indirect 

350

350 Brewery II 

and 

Beechwood 

schemes 

£60m; £2m 

Boots 

Corner

CBC/GCC Jeremy 

William

son

Green Links to 

other LEP 

priorities 

such as 

gFirst 

retail 

pathfinde

r and 

digital 

High 

Street 

initiative.

E Housing Stroud Valleys 

Initiative / 

Flood 

Aalleviation 

Phase 2

Concept TBC £2.4m Key 

development 

site 

enablement; 

Flood 

alleviation 

for valley 

bottom 

regeneration 

sites totalling 

over 100ha

SDC/GCC Barry 

Wyatt

E Transport Cheltenham 

Spa Rail Station 

new bay 

platforms 

Phase 2

Business Case 

Development

2018 

onwards

10m Cheltenha

m

GCC/CB

C/NR/F

GW

E Transport RAU & South 

Chesterton, 

new access 

arrangements

2016/17 Key 

development 

site 

enablement

Cotswold

s

RAU/C

DC

Amber Link to 

Chesterto

n Project 

(R40)

P
age 39



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 16

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

E Employment Contingency for 

work on release 

of safeguarded 

land for 

additional 

employment, 

subject to JCS 

examination 

inspector 

conclusions

Concept 2016 - 

subject to 

JCS 

conclusions

£150k 

(Feasibility 

phase)

No 20 to 30 Ha 

Employmen

t Land

Apprenticesh

ips

Yes - 

potential 

CIL payback

Central 

Government - 

Defence

Severn Trent 

Water

JCS 

authoritie

s

CBC Amber

E Regeneration M5 Jctn10 TBC Growth 

Deal; 

S106;CIL;L

ocal 

authority 

funding

Potential 

future 

release of 

employment 

land; 

congestion 

relief; 

business 

productivity 

& investment

JCS 

authoritie

s/GCC

Release of 

land 

through 

JCS (R55)

E Transport Potential new 

stations - 

Chipping 

Campden, 

Hunts Grove, 

Stonehouse, 

Charfield & 

station 

improvements

TBC Network 

Rail 

Capital 

Prog S106 

CIL

Core county 

connectivity; 

congestion 

relief; 

business 

productivity 

& investment

GCC

E Transport A417/A419 

(Missing Link) 

highway 

improvements 

Phase 1

Business Case 

Development

2022 Highways 

England 

Capital 

Prog/Grow

th Deal

Core county 

connectivity; 

congestion 

relief; 

business 

productivity 

& investment

GCC

E Transport A417/A419 

(Missing Link) 

highway 

improvements 

Phase 2

Concept TBC Core county 

connectivity; 

congestion 

relief; 

business 

GCC

E Digital Broadband 

Infrastructure 

Enhancement 

Phase 2

2016/17 Core county 

connectivity; 

THP, take up 

rates; 

GCC

P
age 40



Appendix 1 Dashboard Page 17

Category Investment 

Theme

Project / 

Programme 

Name

Current 

position

Timeframe 

for start

Total cost of 

project

Secured 

funding

Source of 

secured 

funding

Source of 

proposed 

funding

Housing 

(dwellings)

Jobs 

created 

(specify 

Direct or 

Indirect)

Number 

of jobs 

created

Amount of 

employme

nt land 

created

Skills and 

Education 

(specify 

schools 

places, 

apprentices, 

other)

Transport Private 

sector 

Leverage

Other 

(please 

specify)

District Officer Risks Interdepe

ndencies 

with GIIP

E Housing Gloucester City 

Flood 

alleviation

Concept TBC 25m GCC

E Transport Severn Crossing Concept Post 2021

E Transport Sustainable 

Transport 

Cycling 

Infrastructure

Concept TBC GCC

E Transport A46 from M5 

Junction 9 to 

M69

Pre application 2019 £15m Highways 

England; 

Growth 

Deal; 

S106; CIL; 

Local 

authority 

funding

Congestion 

relief

£1m Improved 

attractivenes

s as an 

employment 

zone

E Transport Chepstow 

Bypass

Concept

Category A – Infrastructure projects that have approvals, funding and delivery plans in place. They are likely to be on site or start on site in 2015-16. Also considered that any final issues stalling progression of delivery i.e. funding have been resolved.

Category B – Infrastructure projects at a suitably advanced stage with sufficient detail to ensure project could be brought forward for Growth Deal or other funding opportunities in 2015 / 2016. 

Category C – Infrastructure projects with a developing concept that could be brought forward for Growth Deal or other funding opportunities in 2016 / 2017. These are likely to be at concept or business case stage.

Category D – Developer-led infrastructure projects with infrastructure requirements that may or may not be fully funded. An indication of supporting infrastructure costs should be identified along with an indication of funding gap and source i.e. S106 / CIL and timing 

of investment.

Category E – Infrastructure projects that are a longer-term priority and may not yet be at concept proposal stage. These projects need to identify what is required to bring forward projects and funding. It may be that these projects would benefit from a small amount 

of developmental funding to determine feasibility.

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SHOWCASE & 
FUTURE ‘AMBITIONS’ WORK

AGENDA NO: 

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Report author Nigel Riglar

Tel no: 01452 328470
Email: nigel.riglar@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Background 
documents

(1) Local Government Association (LGA) Economic Growth Case Study; (2) 
Papers for GEGJC meeting of March 16; (3) Final Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth ‘Showcase’ document.

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

(1 & 2) Follow link for agenda and minutes of March 16 meeting of GEGJC, 
including LGA Case Study: 

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=8
207&Ver=4

(3) Gloucestershire Economic Growth ‘Showcase’ can be found at Appendix 
1.

Main consultees GEGJC Senior Officer Group representatives, including gfirst LEP.

Planned dates N/A

Purpose of report To note the completion of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Showcase.

Recommendations

1. To note the completion of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth 
Showcase; and,

2. To commission a preliminary exercise to test and develop the ambition 
for economic growth with the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee 

Reasons for 
recommendations

At the last GEGJC meeting members highlighted the need to take a long 
term view, potentially out to 2050, of economic growth in the County  in 
order to inform short to medium term discussions and decisions around for 
example devolution,  future rounds of Growth Deal, future reviews of the 
Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and land use plans and business rates.

Resource 
Implications

Consultant fees – c. £2-4k.

Page 43

Agenda Item 7

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=8207&Ver=4
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=8207&Ver=4


ECONOMIC GROWTH SHOWCASE
1. At the last GEGJC meeting members received a report on the production of an Economic 

Growth showcase for Gloucestershire and in support of the item received a presentation 
from David Marlow of Third Life Economics. The showcase document has now been 
completed and the final version can be found at Appendix 1. A communications plan is 
being produced to maximise the impact with central government departments, the Local 
Government Association and professional bodies and networks as well as with local 
partners. The document provides a snapshot and it may be appropriate, on a periodic 
basis, to produce further case studies that can sit within the showcase, reinforcing the point 
that Gloucestershire is ‘open for business’. Members are asked to note the showcase

LONG TERM AMBITION
2. At your last meeting members also highlighted the need to take a long term view, 

potentially out to 2050, of economic growth in the County in order to inform short to 
medium term discussions and decisions around for example devolution, future rounds of 
Growth Deal, future reviews of the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and Council land use 
plans and business rate repatriation. With this in mind it perhaps worth reprising some 
current economic issues. 

OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES
3. The Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) targets growth of 34,000 additional 

jobs, 5,000 apprenticeships and GVA uplift of 4.7% (approaching £500m) over the 2016-21 
period. The "We are Gloucestershire" devolution prospectus augments this with 
commitments to 47,000 new homes over the medium term.

4. As Gloucestershire recommences devolution negotiations with Government, there are 
questions over whether both the character and content of these targets are appropriate for 
an aspirant Combined Authority at the forefront of local growth in England. 

5. For instance, Gloucestershire's job growth 2008-14 was 33,000 (NOMIS). This was 
impressive - the second fastest LEP growth rate after London. However, it arguably makes 
the 34,000 target in the SEP more a status quo than transformational option. More 
profoundly, is Gloucestershire's challenge productivity rather than employment numbers. 
As both the SEP and prospectus recognise, productivity growth has been below England 
averages for the last fifteen years. Over 2010-14 GVA per head declined by 3.5% against 
the internationally-weak UK average (ONS). Gloucestershire has the sixth poorest 
performance of the 39 LEPs and together with Swindon and Wiltshire and West of England 
neighbours, the three LEPs occupy three of the bottom six places.

6. Of a more positive character, many devolution agreements include government 
commitments to 'signature' investments to drive growth - e.g. Graphene and Henry Royce 
Institutes in Greater Manchester; National Smart Data Institute in the North East; even 
Bristol and Bath Science Park and Food Enterprise Zone in West of England. What might 
be Gloucestershire's flagship(s) in this regard?

STARTING THE DISCUSSION
7. The case for reconsidering and reframing ambitions in transformational terms, therefore, is 

timely and appropriate.

Page 44



8. A full economic analysis to define and prioritise transformational ambitions, and then action 
plan their delivery, is a significant undertaking. However, there is merit in a preliminary 
exercise to test and develop the appetite for ambition with the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC). 

9. To this end, it is proposed that Third Life Economics, work with GEGJC over the coming 
quarter to:-

1. Prepare a scene-setting paper that explores and discusses the major challenges 
and opportunities for Gloucestershire to define genuinely transformational growth 
ambitions; 

2. Test and discuss this paper with GEGJC members (and officers/partners as 
appropriate) in a seminar/workshop session; and,

3. Write up a recommended action plan for progressing the GEGJC appetite for 
refining and refreshing headline economic growth ambitions 

10.Dates for item 2 above are currently being canvassed and an update will be provided at the 
meeting. Members are asked to agree to the commissioning of a preliminary piece 
‘ambition’ work, as described above.

Options
11.The option to do nothing exists as does using existing Council officers. For the reasons 

discussed above the need for further work has been identified by the Committee and the 
challenge provided by external expertise should help stimulate a robust debate.

Risk assessment  
12.The main risk is that Gloucestershire does not successfully position itself in terms of its 

commitment to delivering economic growth and misses out on Government and private 
sector inward investment. The establishment of long-term ambitions and in due course 
realistic delivery plans will help mitigate this.

Officer advice
13.To note the LGA case study and support the County Council’s commissioning of additional 

work on behalf of the Committee.

Equalities considerations
14.Not applicable – the outcomes from the further work will be needed before equalities can 

be considered. At this point in time it will be possible to identify whether the 
recommendations from the further work will be taken forward through existing policies and 
programme, which already have equalities processes in place, or whether further bespoke 
activity is required. 

Consultation feedback
15.The Senior Officer Group members were supportive of the further work.

Performance management/follow-up 
16.At the time of writing the timetable for the ambitions work is being finalised and more detail 

will be available at the meeting. 

Page 45



Page 46



Gloucestershire 
growth showcase
Final report

P
age 47



Introduction and purpose: 

If the UK is going to achieve its economic growth and productivity 
goals, strong non-metropolitan local economies like Gloucestershire 
need to be enabled to achieve their ambitions. 

This report showcases Gloucestershire’s track record and potential for public and 
private investment in growth and development. It outlines our perspectives on the 
national and local policy priorities that will shape growth agendas over 2016-21. 
It illustrates these with a number of case studies of Gloucestershire practice. The 
showcase is intended for Government and business audiences who wish to work 
with Gloucestershire’s economic leadership team and our partners to realise our 
respective growth ambitions to 2021 and beyond. 

2 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

P
age 48



Gloucestershire: Major growth potential 
if we can address our challenges:  

Gloucestershire has a population of 611,000, 322,000 jobs, and 
an economy with a GVA of £14.1bn. It is the northern-most area 
of England’s south west. We are well-placed to contribute to and 
benefit from the London and Thames Valley economies to the 
east, Bristol city region to the South, the ‘Midlands Engine’ to the 
north, and South Wales and Cardiff capital region to the West.

At a headline level our economy is strong and resilient, with a high 
rate of self-containment (88%) for a non-metropolitan area. The 
county has an attractive natural environment. 

GVA per capita is 110% of England averages excluding London 
(which dramatically distorts overall figures). In terms of local 
comparative advantage, the economy performs strongly in 
many innovation and skills metrics, with above average scores 
on competitiveness and resilience indices. We have a high 
concentration of advanced manufacturing business, strong assets 
and capabilities in key industries and technologies (including digital 
and cyber-security, nuclear and green energies, agri-tech), and 
two growing local universities with notable specialisms in these 
areas of economic activity. 

map
Cardiff

Gloucester

Cheltenham

Exeter

Southampton

LondonBristol

Oxford

Birmingham

3 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

P
age 49



Our leadership and governance is easy to understand, and this makes 
engaging with us straightforward. The county council area is coterminous 
with Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), NHS Clinical Commissioning Group, 
Police and criminal justice structures. ‘Leadership Gloucestershire’ - our 
‘Leader’s Board’ of Local Authority leaders and key partners) have agreed 
a devolution proposition that we are currently negotiating with Government. 
A major foundation of this proposition is our Strategic Economic Plan (SEP), 
with ambitious growth targets overseen by the public-private GFirst LEP 
Board.

Nevertheless, turning these credentials into sustained economic success 
requires working hard to address a number of longstanding challenges 
and barriers to growth, and enabling investors - both local and global, 
government and business - to work with us in these endeavours.

Our economic strengths are accompanied by lower than average population 
growth rates, forecast to continue through the decade. For 2011-21, 
over 65s are forecast to rise from 18.8% to 22.2% of the population. This 
presents both challenges and opportunities - of growing the labour market 
in quantitative and qualitative terms; and of realising the potential of the 
“grey economy”.  

GVA and productivity growth rates have been below UK averages over the 
last fifteen years. Having reached a peak GVA per capita of 107.5% of UK 
averages (including London) in 2003, by the latest ONS figures (for 2014) 
this had slipped back to 99% per capita and 92% per job filled.

Moreover, our ambitions are not merely to sustain an average, ‘stuck in the 
middle’, England or UK performance as a modest size functional economic 
area. Looking at other successful non-metropolitan European regions, we 
are confident we can, over the medium term, achieve levels of productivity 
and performance akin to some of our continental neighbours. The scale of 
challenge is illustrated in the figure opposite1. 

1 Gloucestershire estimates based on Eurostat 2014 figures

107.5

108.7

119.2

122.4

122.8

149.1

151.3

187.2

75 100 125 150 175 200

Gloucestershire

UK

Vastsverige
(Goteborg)

Basque Country

West of England

Liguria (Genoa)

Salzburg

Groningen

Gloucestershire GDP per capita index
compared to selected EU NUTS2 regions

4 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

P
age 50



Our Strategic Economic Plan and devolution 
prospectus outlines the approach to the first phase 
of this journey. It commits the county to delivery 
of 34,000 additional jobs, 47,000 homes, 180ha 
of employment land, and increases in GVA growth 
rates above national averages to close to 5% pa. 
It prioritises three flagship interventions - a Growth 
Hub to support and enable business dynamism; a 
Growth Zone that will accommodate employment 
and housing supply to further scale up the CGT 
agglomeration; and a Gloucestershire Centre of 
Excellence in Renewable Energy, Engineering and 
Nuclear (GREEN) skills building on our existing assets 
and capabilities in a high growth area. 

Considering the UKs current focus on city-anchored 
drivers of growth, we are planning the futures of our 
major connected centres in Cheltenham, Gloucester 
and Tewkesbury (CGT) as a coherent agglomeration 
of over 300,000 population. This is larger than two of 
England’s ‘core cities’, and a majority of members of 
the ‘Key Cities Group’. 

The SEP and the more recent devolution prospectus 
gives further details of our approaches to housing, 
transport and infrastructure, skills and employment, 
enterprise and innovation enablers of our targets. 

Our two universities also have ambitious expansion 
and engagement plans with local economic priorities. 
And, following announcements in Autumn 2015, 
Government has further recognised our major 
contributions to national digital economy and cyber-
security challenges.

This showcase illustrates why we have confidence 
we can achieve these targets and priorities. It 
highlights some of the key measures we have taken, 
and arrangements we have put in place. These 
demonstrate our commitment and capabilities to 
deliver local growth. It outlines how investors can get 
involved. It also suggests national policies and themes 
that can assure and accelerate Gloucestershire’s 
delivery, and enable us to make a significant 
contribution to future UK success.

We hope this narrative will whet your appetite to learn 
more about Gloucestershire. The following pages 
introduce you to six case studies. These are examples 
of work in progress. But we recognise we can do 
more - especially with the collaboration of investors 
that share our vision and our ways of working. Be 
inspired and motivated to be part of the next stage of 
Gloucestershire’s exciting journey.

InCrEaSE GVa 

GrOwth 
close 
     to 5%

47,000 
nEw hOmES

34,000 
nEw jOBS 

     180
    hECtarES 
Of EmplOymEnt land

5 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

P
age 51



Growth showcase case studies

1. “Leadership Gloucestershire” - 
 because supporting and enabling growth requires a coherent, cohesive and committed leadership team 

and the structures and processes to turn decisions into action

2. Gloucestershire Infrastructure and Investment Fund - 
 as part of a financial portfolio able to accelerate investment in the key foundations of the growth economy

3. “Fastershire” and the digital economy - 
 how Gloucestershire is at the forefront of developing a world class digital economy

4. “GREEN” Skills - 
 addressing skills requirements in key growth industries and technologies

5. Growing the ‘C-G-T metro’ - 
 giving confidence to housing and economic investors in the Cheltenham-Gloucester-Tewkesbury ‘metro’

6. Gloucestershire M5 services - 
 delivering distinctive physical investments as a defining characteristic of successful and special places  

6 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

P
age 52



what is it?
Since at least 2011 Gloucestershire has built strong 
and resilient leadership structures and processes. 
These provide credible, convincing foundations for 
planning and managing growth and development of 
international quality and national significance.  

‘Leadership Gloucestershire’ comprises the Chairs/
Leaders and Chief Executives of the County Council, 
six District Councils, Local Enterprise Partnership, 
NHS Commissioning Group, Health and Wellbeing 
Board, Police and Crime Commissioner, and 
Gloucestershire Constabulary. These senior political 
and executive leaders have met since January 2011 
to provide vision, leadership and strategic direction for 
Gloucestershire.

They work with, and alongside, the growth enabling 
statutory Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee, the GFirst LEP (bringing in business), and 
shared commitments to delivering an increasingly 
streamlined, coordinated planning system.

why is this important? 
Shared vision, understandings and agendas are 
probably the major predictor of successful places’ 
ability to make the most of growth opportunities. 
Coherent and cohesive leadership gives confidence 
to government, business, and investors that 
Gloucestershire is ‘open for business’ and is able to 
deliver effectively the commitments it makes.

what has been achieved so far? 
The leadership and governance of Gloucestershire 
growth has delivered a number of ambitious, credible 
prospectuses, plans, policies and programmes - 
some of which are showcased in the following case 
studies.

The devolution prospectus submitted to government 
in September 2015 outlines a comprehensive set of 
proposals for growth and public services reform over 
the medium and long terms. These are supported 
by the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and European 
Structural and Investment Fund programme for the 
remainder of this decade, deploying over £100m of 
local growth investments. 

The single Joint Core Strategy for the Cheltenham-
Gloucester-Tewkesbury ‘metro’ is currently at the final 
stage of examination in public. This presents housing 
and employment growth ambitions to 2031, and 
complements the SEP’s Growth Zone priority. This 
will raise Gloucestershire’s current 2,500 homes per 
year delivery profile to around 4,000 p.a. by the end 
of the decade, accompanied by increasing rates of 
employment growth. 

The Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment 
Pipeline, together with the Gloucestershire 
Infrastructure and Investment Fund (GIIF), 
demonstrates how the leadership team are able to 
make and discharge difficult funding decisions for 
infrastructure priorities within a long term framework, 
and then deliver those investments effectively.

next steps and ambitions for the future: 
Gloucestershire has committed to establishment of 
a single Strategic Planning Commissioner, evidence 
base and strategic planning framework, overseeing 
integrated planning teams and work programmes. 
Fifteen key public sites have been identified to support 
the growth ambitions. A Single Investment Fund of 
over £300m, and Investment Board to deploy it is a 
key ask of the devolution prospectus.

Government is expected to expedite a Combined 
Authority statutory process, and ensure commitments 
of national department and agencies (e.g. HCA, 
Planning Inspectorate, Government Property Unit) as 
part of evolving growth leadership to the next phase 
of maturity.

Leadership Gloucestershire - arrangements you can trust to deliver, 
and a team with whom you can work

7 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

P
age 53



Westmorland Motorway Services under 
construction (photo © B&K Services) and 
Gloucester’s new bus station, part of 
the strategic transport hub.

8 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

what is it? 
The GIIF is a revolving investment fund for unlocking 
constrained development sites and delivering 
development value and local economic growth. 
Funded through an initial £8.4m Growing Places Fund 
grant from government, the initial investment has 
been fully disbursed. The financial instrument is now 
a sustainable part of an increasingly sophisticated 
portfolio of financing mechanisms in Gloucestershire 
- including a business rates pool; local, national and 
EU investment programmes - supporting an agreed 
medium term infrastructure pipeline over £400m.

why is this important? 
GIIF demonstrates Gloucestershire’s competence in 
deploying investment resources effectively to deliver 
local economic and infrastructure priorities. This 
has included making difficult strategic choices in 
prioritising investment; establishing robust appraisal, 
authorisation, disbursement and repayment financial 
processes; and a monitoring and evaluation regime 
capable of assuring operational delivery and 
stewardship of public investment.

The GIIF example can give government and private 
investors confidence in Gloucestershire’s scaling up 
of local growth financing as and when devolution 
progresses.

what has been achieved? 
The initial £8.4m fund has been fully disbursed 
on five schemes. One extra-healthcare scheme 
in Cheltenham is already operational, and the 
Westmorland Motorway Services Area (see page 
11) is open, and winning national awards. Work on a 
strategic transport hub for Gloucester is underway. 
The GIIF has already scaled up its initial £8.4m to a 
portfolio over £14m.

Perhaps more importantly, the establishment and 
operation of robust processes for determining 
infrastructure strategic investment priorities, for 
investment appraisal, and for accountable body 
management of schemes provides a strong 
foundation for delivery management of much larger 
housing enabling, transport and infrastructure 
investment programmes in the future.

next steps and ambitions for the future: 
The Gloucestershire devolution prospectus seeks a 
single infrastructure investment fund. Currently over 
£330m, (divided roughly equally between housing and 
infrastructure), the GIIF is currently being developed 
further. This would also be able to accommodate 
a portfolio of other financial instruments (local, 
national, EU, business), capital receipts freedom and 
flexibilities, and the intended business rates retention 
regime expected by 2020.  

The GIIF has provided valuable lessons on operating 
this type of facility effectively, just as the business 
rates pool has done for business rates retention. The 
governance models of independent investment panel, 
LEP, and GEGJC will enable rapid and seamless 
migration to a future Combined Authority structure.

Gloucestershire Infrastructure and Investment Fund (GIIF) - demonstrating 
decisive and robust financial management in pursuit of growth    

P
age 54



what is it? 
Gloucestershire is at the centre of global and national 
cyber-security economies, anchored by GCHQ in 
Cheltenham. It has been recognised by Government 
as the key node in the “arc of cyber excellence” 
stretching from Cheltenham, through Bristol and 
Bath, to Exeter - and will host one of the two Cyber 
Innovation Centres that will drive British growth in this 
key industry.

Alongside global excellence, “Fastershire” delivers 
ultrafast broadband to rural communities throughout 
the county. The programme deploys technical 
infrastructure, demand stimulation and service 
digitisation, as an innovative rural and public 
procurement pacesetter for the rest of the UK.

why is this important? 
Gloucestershire is at the centre of the UK’s cyber-
security capabilities with major government, business 
and skills footprints - with government procurement 
alone amounting to over £3.2bn. With the Fastershire 
rural ultrafast roll-out, business has access to these 
markets throughout the county, with a digitally aware 
public sector able to facilitate their taking advantage 
of the opportunities this presents.

what has been achieved? 
Gloucestershire has national recognition as a digital 
economy centre and a leading cyber-cluster of 
international significance.

Fastershire has completed a Phase One roll-out to 
business and communities in Cotswold district. A 
Phase Two contract with Gigaclear to 6,495 premises 
is underway - the first non-BT contract procured 
under the national BDUK programme. Completion of 
Gloucestershire superfast is programmed by 2018, 
through an innovative geographical lot approach, now 
being recommended for adoption in other rural areas 
across the UK.

The infrastructure programme has supported 
development of ‘Faster’ branded programmes to 
business, homes, farmers, schools, women and 
communities. Independent evaluation of one of the 
‘FasterBusiness’ interventions in Gloucestershire 
alone demonstrated a GVA uplift around £7m in 
assistance to just over 100 businesses in the county. 

next steps and ambitions for  
the future: 
Gloucestershire’s central position in 
government’s investments in cyber 
security makes the county a key 
location for business growth in this 
£4bn p.a. national market, and 
broader global cyber-security 
developments. 

The Strategic Economic Plan prioritises leveraging 
this national profile for business growth - with 
developments of the University of Gloucestershire 
Cheltenham Campus, the Cyber Innovation Centre, 
and the GCHQ supply chain providing an unique 
ecosystem for business opportunity.

The county is supporting business facing skills in 
digital economy through an ambitious new campus 
at Berkeley, alongside engineering and energy skills 
investments. This will deliver a vocational UTC, 
college, and higher level skills - from graduate to post-
Doc levels.

The completion of the Fastershire technical 
infrastructure will ensure the whole county is a mobile, 
ultrafast hot spot. The Gloucestershire economic 
leadership team is at the forefront of national as well 
as local policy development - seeking even more 
government ambition in cyber industry growth and 
mobile telephony roll-out.

GCHQ Cheltenham and Fastershire broadband roll-out

“Fastershire’ and the digital economy - one of the most digitally enabled 
places in Europe for business investment and development

9 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

P
age 55



what is it? 
The “Gloucestershire Renewable Energy, Engineering 
and Nuclear” (GREEN) is a SEP priority to grow 
Gloucestershire’s assets and capabilities in low 
carbon, nuclear and engineering industries. It is 
anchored by the exciting opportunity to regenerate 
the former Berkeley nuclear research facility to 
create a skills campus for the Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Maths (STEM) skills these businesses 
will need to be competitive over the coming decades.

A centre-piece of the Gloucestershire Growth Deal with 
Government, the “GREEN” priority includes physical 
redevelopment of the Berkeley campus - Berkeley 
Green “Gloucestershire Science and Technology Park”. 
It will grow to accommodate University, College, and a 
UTC Academy delivering STEM training infrastructure 
and services - for engineering and construction, low 
carbon and subsequently nuclear and cyber-security 
industries. In addition it will deliver business incubation, 
R&D and associated services - well-connected to 
the major energy developments programmed for the 
South West.

why is this important? 
There are national and local shortages of highly skilled 
engineers in the GREEN industries. These are likely 
to increase as nationally-significant nuclear proposals 
for Hinkley Point C and Oldbury, and other major 

engineering schemes are progressed. GREEN will 
address these issues, whilst creating a contemporary 
skills and business campus on the former Berkeley 
nuclear research site, close to the major M5 national 
transport corridor.  

what has been achieved? 
The project has received investments by Government 
from both the 2014 and 2015 growth deals - 
delivering a STEM training centre, Cyber Security 
training and conference centre, and an Advanced 
Renewable Energy Resource Centre. It is a priority 
for the current EU structural and investment fund 
(ESIF) programme. This represents investments of 
over £40m - bringing together local partners from 
South Gloucestershire and Stroud College, University 
of Gloucestershire, the LEP, local authorities and 
business.

next steps and ambitions for the future: 
The post-16 engineering programmes will be available 
on site from September 2016, with the UTC Academy 
opening in 2017, degree and research 
programmes available thereafter. Over 
a five year period ‘Berkeley Green’ 
will become a premier Science and 
Technology Park offering full-service 
skills, business, and R&D facilities 
and services for business.

The “GREEN’ programme, at its broadest, will be a 
major catalyst of growth in high value, knowledge 
based energy, engineering and digital industry. It 
provides an innovative integration of skills provision, 
business growth and innovation support, which are 
too often dealt with in separate ways in many other 
local growth strategies. 

The Science and Technology Park - roughly half 
way between the Cheltenham - Gloucester - 
Tewkesbury ‘Growth Zone’ and Bristol - complements 
the cyber cluster in Cheltenham, and the new 
employment areas in the Growth Zone. It will ensure 
Gloucestershire can offer local business and inward 
investors a breadth of options for physical location, 
as well as skills and support systems that meets their 
requirements. 

“GREEN” Skills - delivering business-facing skills for the engineering, 
energy and digital labour markets

10 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

Engineering skills and Hinkley Point C (Artist’s impression © EDF Energy)

P
age 56



what is it? 
The Joint Core Strategy (JCS) for the three local 
authorities of Gloucester City, Cheltenham Borough 
and Tewkesbury Borough, supported by the County 
Council, is currently at an advanced stage of public 
examination. It promotes a vision for the area (C-G-T) 
forecast to grow to a population approaching 370,000 
by 2031. It sets out a target for 30,500 new homes 
and 28,000 new jobs over the plan period. The Plan is 
complemented by the SEP which focuses growth on 
a ‘Growth Zone’ of employment land around the M5 
corridor as it crosses the Joint Core strategy area.

why is this important? 
At a strategic level, the planning and management of 
C-G-T as a ‘metro’ of 350-400,000 population makes 
this area of genuine national significance, given the 
Government prioritisation of city-region drivers of 
growth. It potentially positions C-G-T as one of the 
25 largest UK metros, with assets and capabilities 
in national priority industries and services described 
above.

At a more local level, the ‘metro’ is likely to deliver 
two-thirds of the new Gloucestershire homes and 
four-fifths of the jobs over the coming decade - with 
major urban and M5 corridor sites coming forward 
for investment and development. The JCS and 
accompanying SEP can give government and the 
markets confidence of an enabling, collaborative 
public policy context in which to deliver this.

what has been achieved so far? 
The three local planning authorities, together with 
the county council, have brought the JCS to public 
examination inquiry and are hopeful of adoption over 
the next 12-18 months. Delivery is supported by 
the planning and financing arrangements described 
in the Leadership Gloucestershire and GIIF case 
studies above. Two designated Housing Zones, 
fifteen identified public land assets that may be 
deployed to deliver housing and employment growth, 
a strong partnership with HCA, the largest Local Sites 
Infrastructure Programme ‘capacity funding’ award 
of any local area, and a number of enabling transport 
infrastructure investments have already been agreed. 
A £4m ‘pinchpoint’ scheme at Brockworth Business 
Park has been completed.

More importantly, the collaboration between the city 
and two boroughs - where Tewkesbury has agreed 
to meet considerable Gloucester and Cheltenham 
housing need - demonstrates the willingness of public 
partners to work together to take and deliver ‘difficult’ 
decisions.

next steps and ambitions for the future: 
The final adoption of the JCS, together with the 
planning and financial arrangements envisaged in 
the devolution prospectus, and the priorities of the 
Strategic Economic Plan, will raise the profile and 
reputation of C-G-T as a credible and premier ‘metro’ 
of national significance.

The devolution prospectus seeks reform of 
the Planning Inspectorate and acceleration of 
Government’s own approach to determining local 
plan policies and major decisions. It considers the 
requirements of an enabling regime for local authority 
house building across all tenure types, rather than 
necessarily focused on affordable social-rented 
or even starter homes. It seeks land and property 
arrangements to deploy the public estate in pursuit of 
JCS and SEP strategic delivery targets - especially, for 
instance, the MoD Ashworth site.

If these ambitions are realised, and Government 
recognises the ‘metro’ as akin to a ‘Key City’ in its 
urban policy priorities, then considerable investment 
and high value local growth will be delivered in the 
Cheltenham-Gloucester-Tewkesbury JCS area.

Growing the ‘C-G-T metro’ - building agglomeration economies and 
sustainable housing growth that surpass most UK Key Cities

11 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

P
age 57



what is it? 
A £3m GIIF loan enabled construction to accelerate 
on Gloucestershire Services southbound on the M5 
between J12 and J11A. The timely investment from 
GIIF was a cornerstone of the whole £40m package. 
It permitted southbound construction to proceed 
immediately after completion on the northbound 
facilities - saving the project costs and time.

The award-winning project is one of only two family-
run motorway service stations in the UK, with a 
business model that includes local procurement, 
community engagement and significant local 
employment/training opportunities co-ordinated 
through Gloucestershire Gateway Trust (GGT). 
Opened in 2015, it now employs 300 people. More 
than half of the work force comes from the Trust’s 
training academies or its target local communities. 
It offers 130 local producers the opportunity to 
showcase their products and services to millions of 
people travelling the M5 every year.

why is it important? 
The service station has intrinsic merit as an economic 
and community project - providing local employment, 
supply chain, visitor economy and place-profile 
benefits. It shows the value of GIIF as a gap funding 
catalyst for leveraging much larger investments, and 
the ability to work effectively and rapidly with business 
and communities to deliver an unusual and innovative 
scheme.

what has been achieved to date? 
The service station is open with the employment 
and local sourcing outlined above, and a community 
business model that aims to provide up to £10m of 
resourcing for local community projects over the next 
twenty years. Almost half of the GIIF loan has been 
repaid, with full repayment due by April 2017.

The service station and its businesses have won 
numerous awards. These recognise the unique 
character of the development. Its innovative design 
has gained 2015 Civic Voice Design and a 2016 
Civic Trust Awards. Its environmental credentials 
earned it an ‘Outstanding contribution to nature’ 
award from Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust. Local 
Food Sourcing has been recognised in Cotswold 
Life, and in Samworth Brothers Rural Action 
Awards. As a destination in its own right, it accepted 
the ‘Destination Innovation’ award at the 2015 
Independent Travel Awards.

next steps and ambitions for the future: 
The Service Station, food businesses and visitor 
economy partners, and the local communities, hope 
to develop the destination further over the coming 
years.

More broadly, however, Gloucestershire Services 
illustrates the commitment of the county to work in 
partnership with external and indigenous business, 
and with local communities, to support highly 
distinctive, innovative and place-appropriate projects 
on time and budget. The support may be financial, 
regulatory (e.g. planning and, in this case, with 
Highways and Utilities), skills and employment, or, 
indeed, cultural and environment. Or it may be an 
integrated package of many of these dimensions.

The bottom-line is...Gloucestershire delivers 
effectively, and with quality...

Gloucestershire (Westmorland) M5 Services: A high quality, distinctive 
development on a national motorway corridor

Gloucestershire M5 Services (photos © Gloucester Services)

12 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

P
age 58



Case Study Conclusions

The six case studies provide a snap shot of important work-in-progress 
to enable and support local growth. They illustrate Gloucestershire’s 
capabilities and commitment to deliver the detailed systems and 
procedures to make policies, programmes and projects happen.

On leadership, “Leadership; Gloucestershire” and 
accompanying structures demonstrate the focus and 
cohesion of partnership working at the apex of local 
decision-making to make decisions decisively and 
follow them up with tailored support. Our ambitions to 
move this to a Combined Authority (CA) arrangement 
- whether Mayoral or non-mayoral - will strengthen 
these arrangements.

On finance, GIIF is part of a portfolio of financial 
instruments that show how Gloucestershire can 
allocate and performance manage public resources 
proficiently and sustainably. Scaling this up in the 
CA’s Single Investment Fund will significantly increase 
impact and effectiveness.

As a major driver of growth and productivity, 
Gloucestershire’s digital economy has global 
significance for Cyber-Security and the local 
assurance of the “Fastershire” superfast roll-out. 
We seek levels of Government ambition for mobile 
telecommunications to fully leverage the growth 
benefits of our experience and capabilities.

Alongside digital economy, our approach to  “GrEEn” 
industries (i.e. low carbon energy, engineering and 
nuclear) illustrate how Gloucestershire can develop 
a priority area of economic activity, anchored by a 
major new Science and Technology Park. The ability 
to link skills, enterprise and innovation interventions in 
synergistic ways is a hallmark of benefits that place-
based devolution can achieve.

The Joint Core Strategy case study lays the 
foundations for realising the potential of Cheltenham-
Gloucester-tewkesbury, as a 350,000+ population 
‘metro’ akin in size and agglomeration benefits to 
many UK ‘Key Cities’ - catalysing major employment 
and housing investment over the coming decade.

The Gloucestershire Services project illustrates how 
local growth - even on a national transport corridor 
- can be designed and delivered to showcase the 
distinctive, special character of Gloucestershire 
as a place.

The significance of the case studies for business and 
the investor communities is that Gloucestershire is 
open for business. We will put in place arrangements 
that will deliver that to which we commit for jointly-
agreed growth and development priorities. Come and 
speak to us to learn more.

Their significance for Government is that 
Gloucestershire has the leadership, partnership 
working, and technical capabilities to plan and 
manage local growth effectively, and to build 
confidence with national and global investor 
communities. Agreeing, and thereafter implementing, 
our devolution prospectus will give Gloucestershire 
the governance to scale up this performance. In so 
doing, Government will get a new Gloucestershire - 
demonstrating how non-metropolitan, medium-size 
functional economic areas can make major, important 
contributions to the UK’s future economic success.

David Marlow
May 17th 2016

13 Gloucestershire Growth Showcase    final report

G
C

C
_1

57
3 

6.
16

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 GFirst LEP Update
	PROJECT REPORTING May Q1 2016-2017 sheet 1
	PROJECT REPORTING May Q1 2016-2017 sheet 2
	PROJECT REPORTING May Q1 2016-2017 sheet 3
	PROJECT REPORTING May Q1 2016-2017 sheet 4

	6 Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Plan (GIIP)
	GIIP (GEGJC paper Appendix 1) Updated 29.06.16

	7 Gloucestershire Economic Growth 'Showcase' & 'Future Ambitions' Work
	GCC_1573 LeadershipGlos-GrowthShowcase-Dev2 Appendix


